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Financial Highlights
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2000 1999 % change
m m

Turnover 319.0 262.5 +21.5%

Profit before Tax 19.6 16.3 +20.2%

Cash Inflow from Operations 22.1 16.9 +30.5%

Development Expenditure 25.1 24.9 +0.8%

2000 1999 % change

Earnings per share 33.5c 26.3c +27.2%

Dividends per share 10.0c 7.7c +29.9%

Net assets per share 205.3c 183.2c +12.1%

2000 1999

Interest Cover 7.2 7.6

Dividend Cover 3.2 3.3

Debt Equity Ratio 54.1% 53.0%

Return on Capital Employed 11.3% 10.1%



S t a ff Numbers - average 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9

Builders Merchants & Steel 7 5 3 6 5 2
Sam Hire 1 3 9 1 1 4
Atlantic Homecare 3 0 3 2 7 9
The Panelling Centre 4 3 -
Cooper Clarke Group Limited 2 2 6 2 2 1

To t a l 1 , 4 6 4 1 , 2 6 6

Builders Merchants and Steel Stockholding

Cooper Clarke

Atlantic Homecare

Sam Hire

The Panelling Centre

Heiton Holdings plc is a leading Irish industrial group, with core

businesses operating in builders merchanting (including plant 

and tool hire), steel stockholding and homecare / D I Y. The gro u p

employs over 1,450 people at 52 locations throughout the

Republic of Ireland and the United Kingdom. The gro u p ’s share s

a re listed on both the Irish and London Stock Exchanges.

Operational Pro f i l e



The group operates its Irish builders merchants and steel stockholding businesses under the names of 

"Heitons" and "Buckleys", while the plant and tool hire business is operated under the"Sam Hire" name.

The builders merchants product range includes a complete range of building and related products, 

such as timber (softwoods, hardwoods and sheet materials), bricks, cement, plaster, plumbing etc.

In the steel stockholding business the product range includes steel plates, beams, tubes and merc h a n t

bars. In addition the group specialises in the cutting and bending of re i n f o rcing bar steel for

i n f r a s t ructural, civil engineering and environmental projects. 

The group is the market leader in Ireland in the builders merchants and steel stockholding businesses. 

Sam Hire is the largest plant and tool hire company in Ireland currently operating from 13 outlets. 

The products include a comprehensive range of small plant and tools for hire as well as a mobile 

p l a t f o rm hire business.

The homecare/DIY retail business trades under the “Atlantic Homecare” name from eight locations.

C u rrently a strong No.2 in market share, Atlantic Homecare offers a comprehensive and value for

money product range within its departments, which include paints/wallpaper, furn i t u re, gard e n

c e n t res, housewares, lighting, hard w a re/tools etc.

The group operates in the UK under the name “Cooper Clarke Group Ltd” 

The business activities of Cooper Clarke break down into the three areas of (i) commodity business, 

(ii) own label commodity products, and (iii) Cooper Clarke branded pro d u c t s .

The commodity business comprises the sourcing and distribution of a discrete range of building

materials including drainage, drylining, steel products and ground engineering. The own label

commodity product activity includes a “Cooper Clarke” casting range, a variety of surface water

channels traded under the “Aquadrain” label and other product lines such as “Colorflow” (gratings

used in the Aquadrain system). The branded specialist products are targeted at niche areas of the

market and include “Ecoblock” (a grass protection block made entirely from recycled materials),

“Bridgdek” (a continuous channel drain product used in the construction and refurbishment of

bridges) and, “Centurion Access” (an underg round chamber product which facilitates subsurf a c e

access and is used in the installation of traffic lights and general street lighting situations).

The Panelling Centre was acquired during the year and operates from three locations in the Dublin

a rea. The Panelling Centre is a leading distributor of products used in kitchen construction as well 

as supplying panels for general DIY building pro j e c t s .
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Six Years of Successive Record s
G roup turn o v e r, pre tax profits and earnings per share have
again reached re c o rd levels. Adjusted Group earnings per
s h a re grew by 27.2% to 33.5c in the year to April 2000
(34.9% excluding last years exceptional item), driven by
G roup turnover growth of 21.5% to 319.0 million and
p re tax profits of 19.6 million, a 20.2% increase on last
y e a r. Operating cash flows from the business were stro n g
with EBITDA up 26.3% to 29.5 million resulting in a year
end debt level of 53.1 million, up from 46.0 million in
1999. The annual compound growth rates for adjusted
e a rnings per share since 1994 have been 38% per annum
s u p p o rted by strong growth of activities, successful
acquisitions and margin enhancement.

These strong results again reflect the Gro u p ’s consistent
implementation of strategy and its leading market position
in the core sectors. Achieved against the backdrop of
continued economic growth in Ireland, the Gro u p ’s
p e rf o rmance outpaced the overall perf o rmance of 
a dynamic construction sector, with superior growth 
and margin expansion.

Delivering on our Pro m i s e
Our strategy has been continually to maximise share h o l d e r
re t u rns through enhancing our market position and
i m p roving the operational perf o rmance in each of our 
c o re businesses. These objectives are achieved through 
a combination of organic development and acquisitions. 

Stephen O’Connor C h a i rm a n

C h a i rm a n ’s Statement
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In the first full year of Leo Mart i n ’s tenure as Group Chief
Executive, I am pleased to re p o rt that significant pro g re s s
has been made in the ongoing delivery of our promise 
to shareholders. Our vision has continued to be 
realised thro u g h

• Enhanced margins in Irish businesses

• Expansion of Atlantic Homecare store opening
p ro g r a m m e

• Acquisition of The Panelling Centre

• Alignment of measurement and remuneration systems
with shareholders expectations

• S t rengthening of Board and management team

• P ro g ress toward E-commerce trading

These key programmes are elaborated on within the 
Chief Executive’s re v i e w.

D i v i d e n d s
The Board is recommending a final dividend of 5 . 2 5 c ,
bringing the total dividend for the year to 10.0c, an
i n c rease of 30% on last year. This brings the compound
g rowth of dividend payments to 26% per annum 
since 1994.

Corporate Govern a n c e
The Board is committed to the highest standards of
Corporate Governance. This applies to the enviro n m e n t ,
health and safety and to the approach adopted with staff ,
customers and suppliers. We are further committed to
s u p p o rting the principles set out in the Combined Code 
on Corporate Governance. 

A detailed statement on Corporate Governance is
contained in the Directors’ Report .

B o a rd, Management and Staff
Some significant developments took place during the year
under re v i e w. Leo Martin was appointed Group Chief
Executive on 6th July 1999 and, as expected, has alre a d y
led the Group to new levels of success while retaining our
c o re strategic focus. In October, Rory O’Mahony joined the
G roup as Chief Operations Director with responsibility 
for the Irish businesses. The various business units have
been re o rganised under his leadership and, in conjunction
with the Chief Executive, he has completed a strategic
review of the Irish businesses.

R i c h a rd Hewat re t i red as an Executive Director in Marc h
2000 and continues to serve as a non-executive Director of
the Board. We were pleased to welcome Richard Keatinge
to the Board as a non-executive Director in October 1999.
On 5th July 2000, Paul Lynch was appointed to the Board 
as an Executive Director with responsibility for Corporate
D e v e l o p m e n t .

Each of these appointments further strengthens the 
B o a rd and positions us well to meet the challenges 
which lie ahead. 

All of our achievements to date and our future plans 
for continuing growth are predicated on the talent and
goodwill of our excellent staff. I wish to acknowledge this
and assure shareholders of our ongoing commitment to
developing and encouraging this vital re s o u rc e .

Remuneration of Dire c t o r s
As re p o rted before, the Board has formally introduced a
new remuneration scheme for Executive Directors which
reflects the importance attached by the Board to
s h a reholder value. This includes a base salary stru c t u re
designed to be at the lower end of comparable peer gro u p
levels. This is coupled with a perf o rmance-linked bonus
scheme that offers the potential for above peer gro u p
e a rnings. There f o re, the scheme contains a well incentivised
remuneration package for Executives and offers higher
re w a rds for higher Group perf o rmance. 

To encourage a bro a d e r-based recognition of the
re q u i rement for outstanding operational and financial
p e rf o rmance, it is proposed that the top managers within
the Group will be remunerated on the same basis with a
phased changeover period commencing on 1 May 2000.
Detailed explanation can be found in the Directors Report
and the Financial Review.

O u t l o o k
The prospects for Heitons key markets are encouraging.
The economic climate in Ireland continues to display
exciting growth, particularly in the context of 
demographic trends, rising disposable income 
and high levels of capital investment. 



Given the strength of our market position, we plan
continued expansion in all areas of the business in Ire l a n d .
P roduct and category enhancement will continue. For
example, the coming year will see the extension of the
Panelling Centre product offering to our nation-wide chain
of Builders Merchants outlets. Further opportunities for
development through category expansion, new store
openings and bolt on acquisition are being pursued in
I reland and further afield. We will maximise such
o p p o rtunities providing they meet our strict acquisition
criteria, which demand evidence of added value and 
specific market positioning or enhancement.

The UK economy, whilst growing at a slower pace than
I reland, is showing signs of some uplift, particularly in the
South East. The national spend on infrastru c t u re, however,
is somewhat sluggish and is holding back growth in our
c o re heavy-end divisions in the North West of the country.

We will continue to build on our focused strategy and
exceptionally solid market base and seek to deliver stro n g
results for our shareholders. I am confident that the
management team under Leo Martin will continue to 
make significant pro g re s s .

Stephen O’Connor
C h a i rm a n

5th July 2000
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H i g h l i g h t s
The excellent results reflect very strong perf o rmances fro m
our business units and also provide further evidence of the
soundness of Group strategy. Tu rnover buoyancy on the
back of excellent contributions from each of the Irish
divisions drove operating profit growth of 21.3% to 

22.8 million.

G roup Strategy
Our success in delivering excellent shareholder re t u rn s ,
which have exceeded overall ISEQ market growth over 
the past six years, derives directly from the pursuit of a
consistent strategy. Enhancing our market position and
i m p roving operational perf o rmance in each of the core
businesses are the central tenets of that strategy and will
remain so. In the last annual re p o rt and at the time of
re p o rting our interim results, we highlighted key elements
of our strategy going forw a rd. These include:

• expanding market share and profitability in 
Builders Merchants, Steel and Hire in Ire l a n d

• g rowing market share and operating leverage 
in Homecare / D I Y

• delivering the Business Plan for Cooper Clarke in the UK

• f u rther value-enhancing acquisitions both in Ireland 
and overseas

• optimising the cost of capital

• focusing on cash, asset utilisation and creation 
of shareholder value

Tangible evidence of delivery of these objectives includes:

• Successful management of costs and pricing, together
with a keen focus on satisfying customers has helped 
to improve Irish operating margins furt h e r, from 7.6% 
to 8.3%.

• T h ree new branch openings for Atlantic Homecare
either in place or in train including the very successful
launch of the flagship Blanchardstown store, the
opening in June 2000 of our Newbridge outlet to 
g reat early success and the announcement of a
new Mullingar store which will open in late 2000.

• The adoption of a category management process in our
Builders merchants and Atlantic Homecare businesses 
is starting to deliver tangible marketing and 
supply chain benefits.

• Sam Hire (with the now completed integration of the
J a n u a ry 1999 acquisition Cherry Picker Hire, now Sam
Access) has delivered excellent growth. Value has been
c reated by marrying the product to our nation-wide
marketing and distribution capability.

• The acquisition of The Panelling Centre demonstrating
our commitment to product and category expansion in
line with customer needs. Significant opportunities to
enhance our product offering will be created by the
rollout of The Panelling Centre concept and products 
to selected Builders Merchants outlets.

• As we anticipated at the time of the acquisition, sales 
of Cooper Clarke specialist products in our Irish outlets
have grown substantially. Good synergies have been
achieved in purchasing and in exploiting the 
c ross-selling potential.

• Concentration on driving cash out of our operations
has helped to increase re t u rn on investment to 11.3%.
Based on our Economic Profit model, economic pro f i t
has grown from 6.7 million to 9.2 million.

We continue to prioritise expansion of our overseas position
in order to reduce dependence on the Irish marketplace.
Our focus in this context remains in the UK and Poland. 
We are seeking out opportunities to enhance or develop 
a market position in significant market niches, at 
sensible valuations.

Review of economy and construction sectors in 
I reland and UK
The outlook for the Irish construction market and for 
overall economic growth in Ireland remains positive.
C u rrent forecasts from the OECD indicate 10% growth 
in 2000 and 8% in 2001 for GDP growth, with the
c o n s t ruction sector growth also anticipated at 10% and 8%.
C o n s t ruction expenditure increased by circa 13% for 1999,
while housing completions were a re c o rd 46,512 units. 
The DIY sector re g i s t e red double digit growth, fuelled by 
the ongoing interest in home improvements and higher
levels of disposable income.

The exciting National Development Plan (NDP) is central to
the continued high levels of construction activity, pro v i d i n g
significant potential opportunities for market share
expansion and enhanced profits for Heitons. Our view
c u rrently is that implementation of the NDP will be delayed
beyond this calendar year by the logjams in the planning

Leo Mart i n G roup Chief Executive

Chief Executive’s
Operating & Financial Review
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p rocess and the issue of labour shortages. Both have
become significant concerns and measures must be
u n d e rtaken at Government level (and in the case of
planning, perhaps through legislation) to address the
p roblems. Although there is evidence that local authorities
a re now committed to the release of more serviced land for
development, severe shortages still exist in specific pockets
a round the country and most notably in the greater Dublin
a rea. From a social policy point of view, it is clear that the
coming years must see new thinking in relation to the
relentless expansion of Dublin and development of
neighbouring counties.

A g reement of all parties to the PPF (Programme for
P rosperity and Fairness) is to be welcomed. Such
a g reements have been central to the success of the Irish
economy in recent years and adherence to the pro g r a m m e
must be followed. Recent inflationary increases and the
reducing labour pool both threaten the PPF. Govern m e n t ,
employers, and unions must remain strong in defence of 
a 33-month programme which is in its infancy. The case 
for discipline, but fairness, in such a strong economy
remains pre s s i n g .

Recent increases in interest rates may have a slightly
dampening effect on inflation but we believe that positive
demographics and employment trends will continue to
drive pro p e rty costs upward. The second and third Bacon
R e p o rts contain further recommendations designed to
dampen the demand from pro p e rty investors and there b y
tighten price increases. The second re p o rt succeeded in
reducing the rate of growth; the third re p o rt re q u i res time
to assess its impact. Both these re p o rts are helpful but fail
to adequately address supply side solutions, particularly 
in housing.

In the UK, 1999 GDP growth was 2% while constru c t i o n
g rowth amounted to 1%. Specifically in Cooper Clarke’s
heavy end sector there was no growth with infrastru c t u re
spend marginally lower than 1998, a dispro p o rt i o n a t e l y
lower level of expenditure in Nort h e rn than Southern
England and a weak roads programme adversely aff e c t i n g
p e rf o rmance during the year.

Operational Report s

The following table provides a summary of sales across our
business segments:

m i l l i o n %

I re l a n d 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9 c h a n g e

M e rc h a n t i n g 1 8 9 . 6 1 7 0 . 8 1 1 . 0

S t e e l 2 3 . 7 2 5 . 5 ( 7 . 1 )

H i re 1 1 . 9 9 . 3 2 8 . 3

H o m e c a re / D I Y 3 1 . 3 2 4 . 2 2 9 . 3

The Panelling Centre 1 . 1 - -

2 5 7 . 6 2 2 9 . 8 1 2 . 1

U K 6 1 . 4 3 2 . 7 8 7 . 2

3 1 9 . 0 2 6 2 . 5 2 1 . 5

Builders Merchants – Ire l a n d
This is the largest division within the Group and is the
leader in its market sector, operating from 21 locations
nation-wide and trading under the Heiton and Buckley
names. The business re g i s t e red turnover growth of 11% 
in 1999/2000 in a very competitive market, while also,
c ru c i a l l y, strengthening operating margins. This marg i n
g rowth has been produced despite competitive pricing 
and rising inflation. Capital investment pro g r a m m e s
focusing on enhancing the product range and customer
s e rvice have all helped to strengthen the competitiveness 
of the business. 

In the current financial year we intend to integrate the
existing Heiton and Buckley businesses under a unified
brand identity. In tandem with this, strong development
p rogrammes are underway in the areas of category and
supply chain management, a new best practice operational
system is being adopted across the branch stru c t u re and
selective investment is being committed to enhancing
branch facilities and capabilities. Our strategy is to continue
to deliver superior re t u rns from this business and to gro w
our market penetration at a pace above the core market
t h rough selective acquisitions, organic development and
i n c reased margins. 

The acquisition of Tu l l a m o re Hard w a re Ltd. was completed
on 30 June 2000. This 5.7 million business re p re s e n t s
another example of filling gaps in coverage in Ire l a n d .
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Sam Hire
The hire division now operates from 13 branches 
nation-wide and had another outstanding year with
t u rnover growth of 28.3%. Returns remain well in excess 
of the cost of capital. In addition to competing very
e ffectively in the small plant and power tools market
segment, the successful integration of the Cherry Picker
H i re business was completed and renamed Sam Access. 
The number of platforms increased by over 100% to 171. 
Sam Hire will continue to grow market share in the coming
year principally through increasing outlet capacity and
penetrating new market sectors.

S t e e l
The steel business perf o rmed very well with an excellent
result producing improved absolute operating margins over
1999. This was against a background of lower turnover due
primarily to the closure of the Portarlington facility which
was due to cost inefficiencies and withdrawal from low
m a rgin business. Furt h e r, surplus supplies disru p t e d
i n t e rnational markets in the earlier part of the year 
followed by shortage of certain products at a later stage. 

For the coming year an investment programme to enhance
value added product capacity is in place which will
s t rengthen the base of the business and opportunities 
to increase steel penetration nationally will be pursued.

Atlantic Homecare
Tu rnover growth of 29.3% was re c o rded for the financial
year under re v i e w. Like-for-like growth was 11.5%. Market
s h a re has risen to an estimated 28% of the ‘shed’ sector 
and the significant profit growth means that this business is
now generating attractive re t u rn s .

The year saw a number of significant developments. 
As we implemented our strategy of focusing on larg e r
s t o res, a major new store was opened at Blanchardstown 
in April 1999 to great acclaim from customers and suppliers
alike. This store now delivers the highest turnover of any in
the Division and is well ahead of the Business Plan. The
smaller Omni Centre store was closed. Another major new
s t o re at Newbridge was opened in June 2000 and a furt h e r
one is planned to open in Mullingar in late 2000. These 
new openings will sustain the dynamic growth in sales 
and operating profit of the business.

Against the background of strong sectoral growth, vigoro u s
competition in the sector is expected to persist. Both
national and international market participants are pursuing
a g g ressive development strategies to tap the potential of
the current huge demand in home improvement. 
The product range will continue to be expanded and
enhanced in line with customer needs as the market
evolves and per capita spend on DIY in Ireland continues 
to converge with the UK and European norm s .

The Panelling Centre
This key business was acquired in April 2000 for 8 . 0
million, with a further 1.2 million payable upon cert a i n
p rofitability targets being met in 2000/2001. The business
operates from three premises in Dublin and provides a
specialist service to both trade and retail customers in
kitchen and bedroom units and related timber pro d u c t s .

Significant potential exists to expand The Panelling Centre
concept into our Builders Merchants network nation-wide
and to introduce a limited range of relevant Builders
M e rchants products into the existing Panelling Centre
outlets. Plans are in train to enhance the business and
i n c rease its market penetration through the opening of 
at least one new outlet re g i o n a l l y, as well as upgrading
existing outlets and unlocking Group synergies on a
national basis. This acquisition is expected to be value
enhancing in the financial year ending April 2001.
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United Kingdom
1999/2000 has been a year of concentration on
o rganisational and management change for Cooper Clarke,
our UK specialist drainage products business. A new
Finance Director was re c ruited in May 2000 to stre n g t h e n
the management team and new organisation stru c t u re s
have been introduced, and management responsibility has
been deepened.

The effect has been a temporary delay to many of the
p rogrammes for new product development, expansion of
sales territories and geographic spread within the UK. Sales
d ropped on the back of a deliberate policy to eradicate low
m a rgin products together with a weak construction, and in
p a rt i c u l a r, infrastru c t u re market. This was compensated
somewhat by sales of branded products into Ire l a n d .

The new team is focused on developing the heavy end
drainage products, the introduction of new products, and
concentration on higher margin activities, thus seeking to
enhance results in the coming year. In addition, investment
in our fourth site, Godalming, was completed in Marc h
2000 and has met our expectations over the first 
t h ree months.

Key Developments

P ro p e rt y
We re p o rted at the interim stage that we were re v i e w i n g
various means by which the significant value of our
extensive pro p e rty portfolio might be unlocked for the
benefit of our shareholders. Two expert groups of intern a l
and external advisors are currently engaged to make
p roposals. We expect to be in a position to announce
decisions in relation to the first of these short l y. The
objective is to deliver additional re t u rns for share h o l d e r s
above the existing use valuations of selected pro p e rt i e s
with significant potential.

P o l a n d
Our re s e a rch, led by two employees based in Poznan,
continues to support our contention that this remains an
exciting long-term market opport u n i t y. We have identified
m e rchants which can give Heitons an appropriate platform
f rom which to grow and indeed discussions are ongoing
with a number of such businesses, which should be ideal
joint venture partners. Initial investments will only be 
made when we are satisfied that the re t u rns and 
g rowth prospects from such investments meet 
our acquisition criteria.

E - c o m m e rc e
Extensive re s e a rch over the past several months has led 
us to confirm that the internet re p resents an excellent
means of enhancing and facilitating more eff e c t i v e
communication and trading with customers and suppliers.
Initiatives to facilitate this are underway with the joint
objectives of superior service levels for customers and 
a lower cost base for the business.

In an important development of our e-commerce strategy,
Atlantic Homecare will be trading on-line via the internet by
the end of this year. We anticipate that Atlantic Homecare
will be the first Homecare/DIY store in Europe to be trading
on-line when we launch this service. We will be selling a
wide range of selected products (initially over 3000) 
and this new distribution channel will enable Atlantic
H o m e c a re to reach many new consumers throughout 
the island of Ire l a n d .

E n v i ro n m e n t
It is our policy to conduct our business activities in an
e n v i ronmentally responsible manner. This includes; 

• Compliance with national and EU legislation on the
e n v i ro n m e n t .

• Development and delivery of products and services in 
a manner that is not detrimental to the environment 
or the health and safety of employees, personnel on 
and in our premises and the general public.

• Seeking to improve environmental perf o rm a n c e
continuously with respect to minimising waste and
emissions and conserving energy and natural re s o u rc e s .
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Financial Report

Economic Pro f i t
G roup strategy is focused on the delivery of share h o l d e r
value. This measures the growth of share price plus
dividend payments. Having reviewed closely our measure s
for evaluation of business perf o rmance, the Board now
believes that the most appropriate accounting based
m e a s u re equating to shareholder value is Economic Pro f i t .

Economic Profit measures the value created by the Gro u p
after deducting a charge for the Gro u p ’s cost of capital. 
The cost of capital is the charge levied on the assets
invested by shareholders in the Group. Share h o l d e r’s
investment is based on the average capital employed
(including purchased goodwill) in the Group over the year.
The cost of capital charge is based on the cost of the mix 
of shareholder equity and debt. 

Applying this methodology indicates that Heitons cre a t e d
economic profit of 9.2 million, up from 6.7 million in
1998/99. This is an excellent re t u rn for share h o l d e r s .

A Summary of Economic Profit over the last 5 years re f l e c t s
Heitons track re c o rd of delivery of shareholder value.

The diff e rence between Economic Profit and other
p e rf o rmance measures, most notably earnings per share, 
is that economic profit re w a rds the successful utilisation 
of assets as well as superior trading perf o rm a n c e .

Application of Accounting Standard s
T h e re is one new standard which affects Heitons this year.
FR15 – tangible fixed assets re q u i res an entity to choose a
cost or revaluation policy. Heitons has adopted a policy of
revaluation of pro p e rties every 3/5 years. 

E a rn i n g s
Details of operating results for the year are contained in 
the Chairman and Chief Executive’s statements. It is
enlightening also to review these results over a 5 year
t i m e f r a m e .

EPS pre goodwill c

Cash Generation
1999/00 again featured strong growth in the generation 
of cash. EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax, depre c i a t i o n
and amortisation) has risen to 29.5 million, an increase of
26.3% over 1999. Following the working capital investment
to support the growth in turn o v e r, the cash generated fro m
operations has risen by 30.5% to 22.1 million. 

9 6 9 7 9 8 9 9 0 0

9 6 9 7 9 8 9 9 0 0



A simplified cash flow format is set out below:

2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9

I N F L O W S m m

Operating Pro f i t 2 2 . 8 1 8 . 8

D e p reciation and Amort i s a t i o n 6 . 7 4 . 6

E B I T D A 2 9 . 5 2 3 . 4

P rofit on disposal of fixed assets ( 0 . 2 ) ( 1 . 8 )

Working capital investment ( 7 . 2 ) ( 4 . 7 )

Cash generated from operations 2 2 . 1 1 6 . 9

O U T F L O W S

Dividends paid net ( 3 . 0 ) ( 2 . 5 )

I n t e rest paid ( 2 . 9 ) ( 2 . 2 )

Taxation paid ( 4 . 7 ) ( 3 . 4 )

Capital expenditure (net of disposals) ( 1 2 . 4 ) ( 8 . 3 )

A c q u i s i t i o n s ( 1 2 . 7 ) ( 1 6 . 7 )

NET CASH OUTFLOW ( 1 3 . 6 ) ( 1 6 . 2 )

This operating cash generation has enabled the Group to:

• Continue a pro g ressive dividend policy with a 20%
i n c rease in net dividend payments 

• Meet the higher interest burden arising from acquisition
e x p e n d i t u re although retaining a comfortable level of
i n t e rest cover

• Pursue a significant capital expenditure pro g r a m m e
(up 49%) behind Atlantic store openings, 
Cooper Clarke new branch and Irish merc h a n t i n g
branch upgrades.

Acquisition expenditure has been financed from new debt.

Balance Sheet and Return s
The net operating assets for the Group (including
capitalised goodwill) have risen by 13.8% to 1 5 3 . 8
million. Return on capital employed has risen from 10.1%
to 11.3% at 30 April 2000. 

Tre a s u ry Policy and Management 
The Gro u p ’s tre a s u ry policies are to maintain a balance
between short, medium and long term debt; to raise
gearing levels at a time of low interest rates and intere s t
rate stability, thereby reducing the cost of capital for the
G roup; to maintain interest cover well above our financial
covenants; and to avoid interest or foreign exchange
transactions of a speculative nature .

I n t e rest cover for the Group remains very comfortable at 
7.2 times, marginally below last years level. This is the most
relevant measure of Heiton’s capacity to assume debt and
means there is substantial scope for borrowing to finance
f u t u re capital and acquisition programmes. 

At the year-end the net debt of the Group was 5 3 . 1
million, a debt to equity level of 54%. Of this total, 2 1 . 1
million has a long dated maturity with the first re p a y m e n t
due in 2003 while a medium term facility amounting to

21.2 million is due for repayment between 2001 and
2005. The Group has operated comfortably within its 
total facilities throughout the year. 

Consistent with our financial risk policies, we continue to
hedge currency risk on overseas purchasers as appro p r i a t e .
The introduction of the euro in 1999 has obviously also
s e rved to mitigate this risk.

Leo Mart i n
G roup Chief Executive

5th July 2000
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Board of Directors and Company Secretary

Age 70, was co-opted to
the Board and became Non-
Executive Chairman in 1994.
Mr O'Connor re t i red as
Chief Executive of Wa t e rf o rd
Foods plc in 1994. He is
C h a i rman of An Post and
C l a s h f e rn Holdings Ltd, and
a Director of several other
companies, including
National Irish Bank.

Age 59, became a Non-
Executive Director of the
Company in 1985. He is
Managing Director of ACT
Ve n t u re Capital Ltd, and a
Non-Executive Director of 
a number of other
c o m p a n i e s .

Age 60, joined the
Company as Serv i c e
Manager in 1966. He 
was appointed a Director 
in 1971 and was Group 
Chief Executive from 
1974 to July 1999.
Mr Hewat re t i red as an
executive director of the
company in March 2000
and became a Non-
Executive Director 
f rom 1 April 2000.

Age 64, became a Non-
Executive Director in 
1993 and was appointed
Deputy Chairman and 
senior independent Dire c t o r
in July 1999. He is Chairm a n
of Superquinn and is a 
f o rmer President of Dublin
Chamber of Commerce. He 
is a member of the National
Executive Committee of IBEC.

Age 38, 
Company Secre t a ry. 

R o ry O’MahonyStephen O’Connor Peter Byers

Age 45, was appointed
G roup Finance Director 
in May 1996. An F.C.A., 
he joined the Company
f rom the Campbell Soup
Company where he held 
the position of UK Gro u p
Finance Dire c t o r.

Age 51, joined the Gro u p
as Chief Operations Dire c t o r
( I reland) in 1999. He was
f o rmerly an executive
d i rector of Glanbia plc
w h e re he was Chief
Executive of the Consumer
Foods Group responsible 
for 5 major businesses in
I reland and the UK.

Age 48, joined the
Company as Finance
D i rector in 1986. In 
1994, he was appointed
Managing Director of 
the Builders Merc h a n t s
Division. He assumed 
the role of Group Chief
Executive from July 1999.

Age 63, joined the Board as
a Non-Executive Director in
1974. Formerly Managing
D i rector of AIB Investment
Managers Ltd, Dr Bourke is
a business consultant, a
non-executive Director 
of a number of private
companies including
H y p o Ve reinsbank Ire l a n d
and Saorgus Energy Ltd 
and is a visiting lecturer at
University College Dublin.

Leo Mart i n

John Bourke Niall Carro l l

Audit Committee
J. K. Bourke (Chairm a n )
N . V.G. Carroll 
S. O’Connor 

Remuneration Committee
S. O’Connor (Chairm a n )
J. K. Bourke
N . V.G. Carro l l
R. Keatinge 

Nominations Committee
S. O’Connor (Chairm a n )
N . V.G. Carro l l
J.R.B. Hewat 
L.J. Mart i n
V. O’Dohert y

Finance & Acquisitions Committee
R. Keatinge (Chairm a n )
N . V.G. Carro l l
J.R.B. Hewat

R i c h a rd Hewat Vincent O’Dohert y

M a ry O’Callaghan

Age 52, joined the Board 
as a Non-Executive Dire c t o r
in 1999. He was form e r l y
Managing Director of IBI
Corporate Finance and
spent a total of 18 years
with the Bank of Ire l a n d
G roup. He is also a form e r
Executive Chairman of NCB
Corporate Finance and
f o rmer Executive Director 
of Hardwicke Ltd. 

R i c h a rd Keatinge

Age 33, joined the
company in May 1997 
to head up its Corporate
Development activities and
was appointed Corporate
Development Director in
July 2000. A Chart e re d
Accountant he pre v i o u s l y
worked with Riada
Corporate Finance 
Limited where he was
Associate Dire c t o r.

Paul Lynch 
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D i rectors’ Report

The directors have pleasure in submitting their Annual Report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the group for the year ended 30 April 2000.

Business review and principal activities
The company is a holding company whose principal operating subsidiaries in the Republic of Ireland carry on the business of builders'
m e rchanting, steel stockholding, timber importing and distribution, manufacture of steel products and roof trusses, plant and tool
h i re, the wholesale and retail sale of wood products and the operation of retail homecare/DIY stores throughout the country. 
The company’s principal operating subsidiary in the United Kingdom carries on the business of builders’ merchanting. 
A full review of the operations during the year is contained in the Chief Executive's Operating and Financial Review on
pages 9 to 17.

Details of the principal subsidiary companies appear on page 52.

P rofits, dividends and re s e rv e s
The financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2000 are set out on pages 30 to 49.

’ 0 0 0

Balance on profit and loss account at beginning of year 3 2 , 9 8 0
P rofit for the financial year 1 5 , 0 0 6

4 7 , 9 8 6

The Directors’ allocations and recommendations to deal with this amount are as follows:

Cumulative pre f e rence dividend of 6.78c per share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2000, paid ( 1 1 )
Interim ord i n a ry dividend of 4.75c per share, paid ( 2 , 2 6 3 )
P roposed final ord i n a ry dividend of 5.25c per share ( 2 , 5 0 3 )
Scrip dividends 8 1 1
Renominalisation of share capital ( 1 2 1 )
C u rrency translation adjustment on foreign currency net investment ( 7 )

Balance on profit and loss account at end of year 4 3 , 8 9 2

Movements in re s e rves are set out in note 15 to the financial statements on page 43.

S h a re capital
Movements in share capital are set out in note 14 to the financial statements on page 42.

F u t u re developments
F u t u re developments are outlined in the re p o rts of the Chairman and Chief Executive on pages 5 to 7 and 9 to 17.

B o a rd of dire c t o r s
The names of the directors and secre t a ry of the company are set out on page 18.

Mr John Bourke, Mr Richard Hewat and Mr Leo Martin re t i re by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr Richard Keatinge and Mr Rory O’Mahony who were appointed as dire c t o r s
during the year now re t i re in accordance with the Articles of Association and, being eligible, offer themselves for election. 
Mr Paul Lynch who was appointed as a director since the year end now re t i res in accordance with the Articles of Association
and, being eligible, offers himself for election. None of the Directors proposed for election or re-election has a service contract
with the Company or any member of the Group with a notice period in excess of one year or with provisions for pre d e t e rm i n e d
compensation on termination which exceeds one year’s salary and benefits in kind.
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Corporate govern a n c e

1. G e n e r a l

The Directors are committed to maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance and this statement describes
how the Principles of Good Governance set out in the Combined Code are applied.

2. B o a rd of Dire c t o r s

The Board of Heiton Holdings plc comprises six non-executive Directors and four executive Directors. The roles of Chairm a n
and Chief Executive are separate. The non-executive directors are independent of management and free from any business
or other relationship which could interf e re with the exercise of their independent judgement. Brief biographies for all
d i rectors appear under their photographs on page 18. All of the directors bring independent judgement to bear on 
issues of strategy, perf o rmance, re s o u rces, including key appointments, and standards of conduct.

The Board holds regular meetings (normally at least nine per annum) and there is contact between meetings as re q u i red 
to pro g ress the Gro u p ’s business. The Directors receive regular and timely information in a form and quality appropriate to
enable the Board to discharge its duties. The Board has a formal schedule of matters specifically re s e rved to it for decision.
This covers the key areas of the Gro u p ’s business including approval of financial statements, budgets, acquisitions,
significant capital expenditure, dividends and new appointments to the board. There is an established pro c e d u re for
D i rectors to take independent professional advice if they consider this necessary. All Directors have access to the advice 
and services of the Company Secre t a ry, who is responsible to the Board for ensuring that applicable rules and re g u l a t i o n s
a re complied with and that board pro c e d u res are followed.

3 . B o a rd Committees

Four Committees of the Board are in place - an Audit Committee, a Remuneration Committee, a Nominations Committee
and a Finance and Acquisitions Committee. The Audit Committee, comprised of three non-executive Directors, meets at
least four times a year to review the annual re p o rt and the pre l i m i n a ry and interim announcements of results prior to
submission to the full Board for formal approval and to review the findings of the external and internal auditors with them.
The Remuneration Committee meets at least twice a year and has four non-executive Directors. This Committee reviews 
the perf o rmance of executive management, including executive Directors, and is responsible for setting their re m u n e r a t i o n
levels including perf o rmance related remuneration and pension entitlements. The Nominations Committee, which is
comprised of four non-executive Directors and the Chief Executive, meets as necessary and is responsible for pro p o s i n g
candidates for appointment to the Board having re g a rd to the balance and stru c t u re of the Board. The recently form e d
Finance and Acquisitions Committee with three non-executive Directors as members will meet as necessary to review 
critical acquisition proposals and advise on financing stru c t u re and policy.

4 . Re-election of Dire c t o r s

Non-executive Directors are appointed for three year terms, subject to re-election and to Companies Act provisions re l a t i n g
to the removal of a dire c t o r, and reappointment is not automatic. Under the Articles of Association all Directors are subject
to election by shareholders at the first AGM following their appointment.

5 . D i rectors’ Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee consists solely of four non-executive Directors (as set out on page 18). The terms of re f e re n c e
for the Committee are to establish the Group's policy on executive remuneration and to consider and approve salaries and
other terms of the remuneration package for the executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee considers pro p o s a l s
re g a rding the remuneration of executive Directors and a number of senior managers and consults with the Chief Executive
fully on these matters. Outside independent professional advice is sought when necessary. The remuneration of the 
non-executive Directors is determined by the Board within the limits of the Articles of Association of the Company.
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Remuneration Policy
The Group's policy on executive Directors’ remuneration recognises that employment and remuneration conditions for
senior executives should properly re w a rd and motivate them to perf o rm in the best interest of the share h o l d e r s .

A new remuneration scheme has been put in place which links earnings to the increase in total re t u rn to shareholders. 
The typical elements of the remuneration package for executive Directors are basic salary and benefits, annual bonus,
pensions and participation in the share option plan. Under the new scheme the basic salary stru c t u re will be at the lower
end of peer group levels with increases linked to PPF. There will also be a bonus stru c t u re that offers the potential for above
peer group re w a rds to be earned linked to the delivery of economic profit and shareholder re t u rn. The intention of the
B o a rd is that there should be a clear incentive for Executives to maximise Economic Pro f i t .

Annual bonus will only be paid if the economic profit is positive and thereby it will be directly linked to growth of earn i n g s
and value creation. This scheme is being extended over the next two years to senior management in the group to
encourage a broader based view of the need for outstanding perf o rmance. Details of the calculation of economic profit 
can be found in the finance section of the Chief Executive’s re p o rt .

Pensions for executive Directors are calculated on basic salary only - no incentive or benefit elements are included - and in
general aim to provide two-thirds of salary at re t i rement for full service. In the case of executive Directors and some key
senior management there is provision for re t i rement at 60 years of age. 

D i rectors’ Service Contracts
T h e re are no service contracts between any Director of the Company and the Company or any of its subsidiaries with a
notice period in excess of one year or with provisions for pre d e t e rmined compensation on termination which exceeds one
y e a r’s salary and benefits in kind.

D i rectors’ Intere s t s
The beneficial and non-beneficial interests of the Directors and secre t a ry of the company and their spouses and minor
c h i l d ren in the share capital of the company at 30 April 2000 and 30 April 1999 were as follows:
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O rd i n a ry share s O rd i n a ry share s 6 %
B e n e f i c i a l Non-beneficial Cumulative 

p re f e rence 
30 April 2000 s h a re s

John Bourke 4 , 8 1 6 - -
Peter Byers 6 4 , 5 0 2 - -
Niall Carro l l 3 4 , 3 6 7 - -
R i c h a rd Hewat 5 3 0 , 8 3 5 * 1 9 2 , 4 2 9 2 , 8 1 0
R i c h a rd Keatinge (appointed 14 September 1999) 1 1 , 3 0 1 - -
Leo Mart i n 1 2 5 , 4 2 3 * 1 9 2 , 4 2 9 -
Stephen O’Connor 3 1 , 2 0 3 - -
Vincent O’Dohert y 1 7 9 - -
R o ry O’Mahony (appointed 12 October 1999) 1 2 , 0 0 0 - -
M a ry O’Callaghan (Company Secre t a ry ) 32,550 - -

30 April 1999

John Bourke 4 , 7 7 4 - -
Peter Byers 1 9 , 1 9 2 - -
Niall Carro l l 3 4 , 0 6 6 - -
R i c h a rd Hewat 4 9 5 , 7 3 1 * 2 0 8 , 0 8 6 2 , 5 2 3
R i c h a rd Keatinge ** - - -
Leo Mart i n 1 2 5 , 4 1 5 * 2 0 8 , 0 8 6 -
Stephen O’Connor 3 1 , 2 0 3 - -
Vincent O’Dohert y 1 7 8 - -
R o ry O’Mahony ** - - -
M a ry O’Callaghan (Company Secre t a ry ) 1 5 , 2 6 5 - -

*Held in their capacity as trustees of the Heiton Holdings plc Employee Profit Sharing Scheme.
* * S h a reholding on date of appointment as dire c t o r.

Mr Paul Lynch who was appointed an executive director on 5 July 2000 held 112 ord i n a ry shares beneficially on that date.



D i rectors’ Report c o n t i n u e d

D i rectors’ interests - continued
Details of share options held by the directors and the company secre t a ry are as follows:

30 April G r a n t e d E x e rc i s e d 30 April We i g h t e d E x e rcisable by 
1 9 9 9 D u r i n g during year 2 0 0 0 average price

Ye a r of options
outstanding at
30 April 2000

Peter Byers 1 5 5 , 0 0 0 3 2 , 0 0 0 ( 4 0 , 0 0 0 ) 1 4 7 , 0 0 0 2 . 1 8 6 6 Jul ’07 - Jul ’09
R i c h a rd Hewat 1 1 5 , 0 0 0 - - 1 1 5 , 0 0 0 1 . 9 0 4 6 Mar ’01
Leo Mart i n 1 1 5 , 0 0 0 6 0 , 0 0 0 - 1 7 5 , 0 0 0 2 . 3 4 8 7 Jul ’06 - Jul ’09
R o ry O’Mahony - 4 1 , 5 0 0 - 4 1 , 5 0 0 3 . 2 0 0 0 Apr ’10
M a ry O’Callaghan (Company Secre t a ry ) 3 2 , 0 0 0 - ( 1 7 , 0 0 0 ) 1 5 , 0 0 0 1 . 9 0 4 6 Oct ’08

Mr Paul Lynch who was appointed a director on 5 July 2000 held 40,932 options at that date at a weighted average price 
of 2 . 7 2 5 3 .

The options exercised during the year as shown above, were exercised at a weighted average price of 1.218 (the market
price when the options were granted).

The market price of the company’s ord i n a ry shares on the Irish Stock Exchange at 30 April 2000 was 3.30 and the price
range during the year was 2.70 to 4 . 0 0 .

Other than as stated above there are no non-beneficial holdings held by any of the Directors. The ord i n a ry shares under
option are granted under an Executive Share Option Scheme. There were no transactions by the Directors between 
30 April 2000 and 5 July 2000.

Other than as stated below the directors and company secre t a ry had no interest, otherwise than through the company,
in the share capital and debentures of any subsidiary at 30 April 2000 or 30 April 1999.

300 "A" ord i n a ry shares of 1.27 (IR£1) each in Dunmore Holdings Limited are not held by the company. Beneficial
i n t e rests in these shares are held by the following Directors of the company:

30 April 30 April

2000 1 9 9 9

Peter Byers 100 1 0 0
R i c h a rd Hewat 100 1 0 0
Leo Mart i n 100 1 0 0

Other than as stated above there have not been any contracts or arrangements material to the company or any of its
subsidiaries in which a Director of the company was materially interested, and which was significant in relation to the
c o m p a n y ’s business.
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D i rectors’ emoluments

2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
N o n - N o n -

E x e c u t i v e E x e c u t i v e E x e c u t i v e E x e c u t i v e
D i re c t o r s D i re c t o r s D i re c t o r s D i re c t o r s

’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Fees for services as Dire c t o r s - 1 1 9 - 9 2
Other re m u n e r a t i o n 6 0 9 - 4 3 1 -
Benefits in kind 3 1 - 2 3 -
P e rf o rmance related bonuses 3 2 4 - 3 4 0 -
Pension contributions 1 0 8 - 8 2 -

1 , 0 7 2 1 1 9 8 7 6 9 2

Number of Dire c t o r s
At beginning of year 3 4 3 4
A p p o i n t e d 1 2 - -
R e s i g n e d ( 1 ) - - -

At end of year 3 6 3 4

The Directors remuneration shown comprises all of the fees, salaries, pension contributions and other benefits and
emoluments paid to Dire c t o r s .

Since the year end, on 5 July 2000, Mr Paul Lynch was appointed an Executive Director thereby increasing the number 
of executive directors to 4.

D i rectors’ pensions: benefits under defined benefit scheme

The aggregate pension benefits attributable to existing executive Directors or executive Directors who have left serv i c e
during the current financial year are as follows:

2 0 0 0
’0 0 0

Accumulated accrued pension benefits on leaving service at year end 1 9 4

I n c rease in accumulated accrued pension benefits (excluding inflation) in the year 4 6

Transfer value of the increase in accumulated accrued benefits (excluding inflation) at the year end 
(calculated in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note GN11) 4 2 1

No pension benefits are attributable to non-executive Dire c t o r s .

6 . Relations with Share h o l d e r s

Heiton Holdings attaches a high priority to investor relations. An ongoing programme of shareholder communication on
strategy and perf o rmance is well established. There is regular dialogue with individual institutional investors as well as
general presentations at the time of the release of the annual and interim results. Results announcements are sent 
p romptly to all shareholders and published on the Gro u p ’s web site at http://www.heitons.ie. The Company’s AGM 
a ff o rds individual shareholders the opportunity to question the Chairman and the Board. In addition, the Company
responds throughout the year to numerous letters and telephone calls from shareholders on a wide range of issues.

As in 1999, arrangements have been made for the 2000 annual re p o rt and AGM notice to be sent to shareholders 20
working days before the meeting. The level of proxy votes cast on each resolution, and the numbers for and against, 
will be announced at the 2000 AGM. 
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7 . Accountability and Audit

The written terms of re f e rence of the Audit Committee deal clearly with its authority and duties which include consideration
of the appointment of the external auditors and their fees and review of the scope and results of the work perf o rmed by
both internal and external auditors.

In October 1999 the Irish Stock Exchange adopted the Tu rnbull Working Part y ’s "Internal Control Guidance for Directors on
the Combined Code". This formalised the need by the Company to consider risk management, operational and compliance
c o n t rols as well as financial controls. The Group has reviewed its internal control pro c e d u res to ensure full compliance with
the re q u i rements outlined in the Guidance document and has put in place all necessary revisions to implement it fully for
the year ended 30 April 2001. In the meantime and as permitted by the Irish and London Stock Exchanges, the Company
has adopted a transitional approach for the year ended 30 April 2000 and has complied with the Combined Code
p rovisions in respect of internal control by re p o rting on internal financial controls in accordance with the guidance for
D i rectors on internal control and financial re p o rting issued in December 1994.

The directors are responsible for the Gro u p ’s system of financial control which provides reasonable but not absolute
a s s u r a n c e :

• that proper accounting re c o rds are maintained;
• as to the reliability and integrity of the financial statements;
• that assets are safeguarded against unauthorised use or disposition;
• that fraud and other material irregularities are prevented and detected.

The key elements of the pro c e d u res established by the Directors to provide effective internal financial control are :

• an Audit Committee, which meets re g u l a r l y, inviting, where appropriate, company executives and external auditors. 
They review re p o rts on various aspects of control, the Gro u p ’s annual re p o rt and statutory financial statements and
other published financial information, and ensure that no restrictions are placed on the scope of the statutory audit 
or on the independence of the internal audit function.

• a comprehensive annual budgeting and financial re p o rting system.

• an internal auditor who pre p a res an annual plan for Audit Committee approval. Regular re p o rts are made to the
Committee on the evaluation of internal financial control and assessment of business risk. The internal auditor 
has direct access to the Audit Committee.

• clear policies and pro c e d u res over all key areas of revenue and expenditure, including capital investment, physical 
and computer security and business resumption planning.

• a clearly defined organisation stru c t u re with defined lines of authority and accountability. Appropriately experienced
and qualified staff have been allocated responsibility for major business functions.

The Directors recognise that an effective internal control system is an essential part of the efficient management of the
c o m p a n y. Utilising the pro c e d u res described above, the Directors confirm that they have reviewed the effectiveness of the
system of internal financial contro l .

The Directors confirm, having made appropriate enquiries, that the group has adequate re s o u rces to continue operations
for the foreseeable future and have, there f o re, pre p a red the financial statements on a going concern basis.



2 7

D i rectors’ Report c o n t i n u e d

8 . Compliance Statement

Heiton Holdings has complied, during the year ended 30 April 2000, with all of the Principles of Good Governance and
Code of Best Practice (“the Combined Code”) derived by the Committee on Corporate Governance from the Committee’s
Final Report and from the Cadbury and Gre e n b u ry Reports, save in respect of the following matter:

D i rectors’ re m u n e r a t i o n :
D i s c l o s u res re g a rding Directors’ remuneration have been drawn up on an aggregate basis, in accordance with the Listing
Rules of the Irish Stock Exchange.

D i rectors’ re s p o n s i b i l i t i e s
In accordance with Irish company law, the Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and the company and
of the profit or loss of the group for that financial year. In preparing those financial statements, the directors recognise the
re q u i rements to:

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and pru d e n t ;
• p re p a re the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to do so.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for keeping proper books of account which disclose with re a s o n a b l e
a c c u r a c y, at any time, the financial position of the group and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements are
p re p a red in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in Ireland and comply with Irish statute comprising
the Companies Acts, 1963 to 1999 and the European Communities (Companies: Group Accounts) Regulations, 1992. The
D i rectors recognise their responsibility for safeguarding the assets of the group and for taking reasonable steps for 
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irre g u l a r i t i e s .

Substantial intere s t s
The directors have been notified of the following substantial interests as at 5 July 2000:

Grafton Group plc 1 4 . 5 6 %
Allied Irish Banks plc and its subsidiaries 1 1 . 9 3 %
Mr EC Johnson/Fidelity International Ltd/FMR Corp 9 . 9 8 %
Bank of Ireland Asset Management Ltd 4 . 4 4 %
Scottish Pro v i d e n t 3 . 9 3 %

R e s e a rch and development 
Under this heading the gro u p ’s principal activities are product sourcing and market re s e a rc h .

We l f a re of employees
It is the policy of the group to ensure the health and welfare of employees by maintaining a safe place and system of work.
This policy is embraced in safety statements and is based on the re q u i rements of employment legislation, including the
S a f e t y, Health and We l f a re at Work Act, 1989.

Company status
So far as the directors are aware, the close company provisions of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997 did not apply to the
company at 30 April 2000.

A u d i t o r s
The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, have indicated their willingness to continue in office as auditors of the company.

On behalf of the board

S O’Connor
LJ Martin
5 July 2000



Auditors’ Report to the members of Heiton Holdings plc

We have audited the financial statements on pages 30 to 49.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report. As described on page 27, this includes responsibility for
p reparing the financial statements in accordance with Accounting Standards generally accepted in Ireland. Our re s p o n s i b i l i t i e s ,
as independent auditors, are established in Ireland by statute, the Auditing Practices Board, the Listing Rules of the Irish Stock
Exchange and our pro f e s s i o n ’s ethical guidance.

We re p o rt to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly pre p a red in
a c c o rdance with Irish statute, comprising the Companies Acts, 1963 to 1999 and the European Communities (Companies:
G roup Accounts) Regulations, 1992. We state whether we have obtained all the information and explanations we consider
n e c e s s a ry for the purposes of our audit and whether the company balance sheet is in agreement with the books of account. 
We also re p o rt to you our opinion as to:

• whether the company has kept proper books of account;

• whether the Directors’ re p o rt is consistent with the financial statements; and

• whether at the balance sheet date there existed a financial situation which may re q u i re the company to hold an
e x t r a o rd i n a ry general meeting; such a financial situation may exist if the net assets of the company, as stated in the
company balance sheet, are not more than half of its called-up share capital.

We also re p o rt to you if, in our opinion, any information re q u i red by law or the Listing Rules of the Irish Stock Exchange
re g a rding Directors’ remuneration and transactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider the implications for our re p o rt if we become aware
of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

We review whether the statement on page 27 reflects the company’s compliance with the seven provisions of the Combined
Code specified for our review by the Irish Stock Exchange, and we re p o rt if it does not. We are not re q u i red to consider
whether the board ’s statements on internal control cover all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the company’s or gro u p ’s corporate governance pro c e d u res or its risk and control pro c e d u re s .

Basis of opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes 
an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial 
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances, consistently applied 
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and perf o rmed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in
o rder to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or erro r. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.
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Auditors’ Report c o n t i n u e d

O p i n i o n
In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and the group at 
30 April 2000 and of the profit and cash flows of the group for the year then ended and have been properly pre p a red 
in accordance with the Companies Acts, 1963 to 1999 and the European Communities (Companies: Group Accounts)
Regulations, 1992.

We have obtained all the information and explanations we consider necessary for the purposes of our audit. In our opinion
p roper books of account have been kept by the company. The company balance sheet is in agreement with the books 
of account.

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ re p o rt on pages 20 to 27 is consistent with the financial statements.

The net assets of the company, as stated in the company balance sheet on page 36, are more than half of the amount of its
called-up share capital and, in our opinion, on that basis there did not exist at 30 April 2000 a financial situation which under
Section 40(1) of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 1983 would re q u i re the convening of an extraord i n a ry general meeting of
the company.

P r i c e w a t e rh o u s e C o o p e r s
C h a rt e red Accountants and Registered Auditors

D u b l i n

5 July 2000



Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies adopted by the group are as follows:

1 Basis of pre p a r a t i o n
The financial statements have been pre p a red in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in Ireland and
Irish statute comprising the Companies Acts, 1963 to 1999, and the European Communities (Companies: Group Accounts)
Regulations, 1992. Accounting standards generally accepted in Ireland in preparing financial statements giving a true 
and fair view are those published by the Institute of Chart e red Accountants in Ireland and issued by the Accounting
S t a n d a rds Board .

2 Basis of accounting
The financial statements are pre p a red under the historical cost convention as modified by the inclusion of certain fixed
assets on the basis of valuations in excess of cost.

3 Basis of consolidation
The group financial statements include the results of the parent company and all of its subsidiary undertakings made 
up to 30 April 2000.

4 G o o d w i l l
With effect from 1 May 1998 purchased goodwill, being the excess of the consideration over the fair values of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of acquired undertakings, is capitalised and related amortisation based on its useful 
life of 10 to 20 years is charged against operating profits. Goodwill arising prior to that date was written off 
immediately to re s e rv e s .

5 Tangible fixed assets and depre c i a t i o n
Land and buildings are stated on the basis of revaluations less accumulated depreciation on buildings. The amount
attributable to revalued buildings, for the purpose of calculating depreciation, has been estimated by professional valuers. 

Other tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depre c i a t i o n .

D e p reciation is calculated in order to write off the cost or valuation of tangible fixed assets, other than land, over their
estimated useful lives.

6 Leased assets
Assets acquired under finance leases are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
t e rm or their estimated useful lives. The related obligation is included in creditors. Finance costs are charged to the pro f i t
and loss account over the primary period of the lease.

Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which they arise.

7 S t o c k s
Stocks, which consist principally of bought-in goods held for resale, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined by re f e rence to invoice price, together with the cost of delivery to the gro u p ’s premises where
a p p ropriate. Net realisable value is determined by taking account of the expected selling price less all costs to be incurred 
in marketing, selling and distribution.

8 Tu rn o v e r
Tu rnover re p resents the amounts invoiced by group companies for goods supplied and services re n d e red to customers
outside the gro u p .

9 D e f e rred taxation
P rovision is made for deferred taxation by the liability method on timing diff e rences except to the extent that it is not
expected to become payable in the foreseeable future .
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Accounting Policies c o n t i n u e d

1 0 F o reign curre n c i e s
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to euros at the exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date or at contracted rates as appropriate. The operating results of subsidiaries in non-euro countries are translated 
to euros at average exchange rates. Translation adjustments arising from the restatement of the opening net investment
in non-euro subsidiaries at year end exchange rates and the translation of their results at average exchange rates are dealt
with through re s e rves. All other translation adjustments are dealt with in the profit and loss account.

1 1 Derivative financial instru m e n t s
Swap agreements are used to hedge the gro u p ’s exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency and interest rates on its US
dollar senior loan notes. These loan notes are translated at the currency swap rates. 

F o rw a rd currency contracts are used to manage exposures on trading purchases denominated in foreign curre n c i e s .
P u rchases and the related liabilities are translated at the contract rate at the date of the transaction.

1 2 Pension costs
The pension cost relating to the group schemes is assessed in accordance with the advice of a qualified independent actuary
and is charged to the profit and loss account on a basis calculated to spread the cost of pensions over the expected serv i c e
lives of current employees.



G roup Profit and Loss Account 

N o t e s 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Tu rn o v e r 1 3 1 8 , 9 5 7 2 6 2 , 5 4 3

Operating pro f i t 2 2 2 , 7 5 9 1 8 , 7 7 0
I n t e rest payable 3 ( 3 , 1 8 2 ) ( 2 , 4 8 6 )

P rofit before taxation 1 9 , 5 7 7 1 6 , 2 8 4
Ta x a t i o n 4 ( 4 , 5 7 1 ) ( 4 , 4 8 2 )

P rofit for the financial year 1 5 , 0 0 6 1 1 , 8 0 2
Dividends paid 5 ( 2 , 2 7 4 ) ( 1 , 7 9 8 )
Dividends proposed 5 ( 2 , 5 0 3 ) ( 1 , 8 4 1 )

Retained for the year 1 0 , 2 2 9 8 , 1 6 3

Basic earnings per share in cents 6 3 1 . 6 1 2 5 . 1 7

Diluted earnings per share in cents 6 3 1 . 4 0 2 5 . 0 3

P re-goodwill earnings per share in cents 6 3 3 . 5 1 2 6 . 3 4

Tu rnover and operating profit arose solely from continuing operations.

Year Ended 30 April 2000

On behalf of the board

S O’Connor
LJ Martin
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G roup Balance Sheet

N o t e s 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 7 9 7 , 1 9 7 8 5 , 7 4 6
Intangible assets 8 2 2 , 0 0 8 1 8 , 5 9 1

1 1 9 , 2 0 5 1 0 4 , 3 3 7

C u rrent assets
S t o c k s 9 5 1 , 1 1 1 4 1 , 7 0 7
D e b t o r s 1 0 7 0 , 5 3 1 6 2 , 5 4 7
Cash at bank and in hand 9 , 5 7 0 1 1 , 0 0 0

1 3 1 , 2 1 2 1 1 5 , 2 5 4

C reditors - amounts falling due within one year 1 1 ( 1 0 4 , 9 0 9 ) ( 8 3 , 2 1 5 )

Net current assets 2 6 , 3 0 3 3 2 , 0 3 9

Total assets less current liabilities 1 4 5 , 5 0 8 1 3 6 , 3 7 6

C re d i t o r s - amounts falling due after more than one year 1 2 ( 4 4 , 7 9 2 ) ( 4 7 , 2 2 7 )

P rovisions for liabilities and charg e s
D e f e rred taxation 1 3 ( 2 , 6 0 0 ) ( 2 , 4 0 2 )

9 8 , 1 1 6 8 6 , 7 4 7

Capital and re s e rv e s
Called-up share capital 1 4 1 5 , 4 8 6 1 5 , 2 1 9
S h a re pre m i u m 1 5 8 , 7 7 5 8 , 5 8 5
Revaluation re s e rv e 1 5 2 9 , 9 6 3 2 9 , 9 6 3
P rofit and loss account 1 5 4 3 , 8 9 2 3 2 , 9 8 0

9 8 , 1 1 6 8 6 , 7 4 7

Equity shareholders’ funds 9 7 , 8 8 7 8 6 , 5 1 8
Non-equity shareholders’ funds 2 2 9 2 2 9

9 8 , 1 1 6 8 6 , 7 4 7

30 April 2000

On behalf of the board

S O’Connor
LJ Martin



G roup Cash Flow Statement

N o t e s 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Net cash inflow from operating activities 1 6 2 2 , 0 7 4 1 6 , 9 2 1

R e t u rns on investments and servicing of finance:
I n t e rest and pre f e rence dividends paid 1 7 ( 2 , 9 4 8 ) ( 2 , 1 9 6 )

Taxation paid: Corporation tax ( 4 , 7 3 0 ) ( 3 , 4 1 8 )

Capital expenditure 1 7 ( 1 0 , 2 2 2 ) ( 7 , 7 6 4 )

Acquisitions and disposals: P u rchase of new undert a k i n g s ( 1 2 , 7 3 6 ) ( 1 6 , 6 5 7 )

Equity dividends paid ( 3 , 2 9 3 ) ( 2 , 7 4 1 )

Net cash outflow before financing ( 1 1 , 8 5 5 ) ( 1 5 , 8 5 5 )

F i n a n c i n g
Issue of new share capital 3 3 6 2 5 4
I n c rease in debt 1 7 7 , 6 6 2 1 2 , 0 1 1

7 , 9 9 8 1 2 , 2 6 5

D e c rease in cash ( 3 , 8 5 7 ) ( 3 , 5 9 0 )

Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow to Movement in Net Debt
Year Ended 30 April 2000

N o t e s 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

D e c rease in cash above ( 3 , 8 5 7 ) ( 3 , 5 9 0 )
I n c rease in debt above ( 7 , 6 6 2 ) ( 1 2 , 0 1 1 )
New finance leases 1 8 ( 2 , 1 2 8 ) ( 5 1 0 )
Finance leases acquired with new undert a k i n g - ( 9 3 2 )
Debt acquired with new undert a k i n g - ( 2 , 4 9 1 )

Change in net debt ( 1 3 , 6 4 7 ) ( 1 9 , 5 3 4 )
Net debt at beginning of year ( 2 9 , 5 3 6 ) ( 1 0 , 0 0 2 )

Net debt at end of year 1 8 ( 4 3 , 1 8 3 ) ( 2 9 , 5 3 6 )

Year Ended 30 April 2000

On behalf of the board

S O’Connor
LJ Martin



3 5

Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses

N o t e s 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

P rofit for the financial year 1 5 , 0 0 6 1 1 , 8 0 2
U n realised surplus on revaluation of pro p e rt i e s - 2 6 , 5 4 1

1 5 , 0 0 6 3 8 , 3 4 3
C u rrency translation adjustment on foreign currency net investment 1 5 ( 7 ) ( 2 9 )

Total recognised gains and losses for the year 1 4 , 9 9 9 3 8 , 3 1 4

Note of Historical Cost Profits and Losses

The diff e rence between the re p o rted profits and those calculated on an unmodified historical cost basis is not material.

Movements on Profit and Loss Account
Year Ended 30 April 2000

N o t e s 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

At beginning of the year 3 2 , 9 8 0 2 4 , 1 4 0
Scrip dividends 5 8 1 1 7 0 6
Retained for the year 1 0 , 2 2 9 8 , 1 6 3
C u rrency translation adjustment on foreign currency net investment 1 5 ( 7 ) ( 2 9 )
Renominalisation of share capital 1 4 ( 1 2 1 ) -

At end of the year 4 3 , 8 9 2 3 2 , 9 8 0

Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds
Year Ended 30 April 2000

N o t e s 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

P rofit for the financial year 1 5 , 0 0 6 1 1 , 8 0 2
D i v i d e n d s 5 ( 4 , 7 7 7 ) ( 3 , 6 3 9 )

1 0 , 2 2 9 8 , 1 6 3
Scrip dividends 5 8 1 1 7 0 6
Issue of new share capital 1 4 & 1 5 4 5 7 2 5 4
U n realised surplus on revaluation of pro p e rt i e s - 2 6 , 5 4 1
C u rrency translation adjustment on foreign currency net investment 1 5 ( 7 ) ( 2 9 )
Renominalisation of share capital 1 4 ( 1 2 1 ) -

Net addition to shareholders’ funds 1 1 , 3 6 9 3 5 , 6 3 5
S h a reholders’ funds at beginning of year 8 6 , 7 4 7 5 1 , 1 1 2

S h a reholders’ funds at end of year 9 8 , 1 1 6 8 6 , 7 4 7

Year Ended 30 April 2000



N o t e s 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Fixed assets
Financial assets 2 1 4 2 , 8 2 8 3 3 , 7 6 6

C u rrent assets
D e b t o r s 1 0 4 8 , 4 4 6 4 0 , 0 7 3
Cash at bank and in hand - 2 3 6

4 8 , 4 4 6 4 0 , 3 0 9

C reditors - amounts falling due within one year 1 1 ( 1 8 , 1 2 8 ) ( 9 , 4 4 4 )

Net current assets 3 0 , 3 1 8 3 0 , 8 6 5

Total assets less current liabilities 7 3 , 1 4 6 6 4 , 6 3 1

C reditors - amounts falling due after more than one year 1 2 ( 4 2 , 2 9 1 ) ( 3 4 , 2 2 1 )

P rovisions for liabilities and charg e s
D e f e rred taxation 1 3 ( 2 1 7 ) ( 1 8 6 )

3 0 , 6 3 8 3 0 , 2 2 4

Capital and re s e rv e s
Called-up share capital 1 4 1 5 , 4 8 6 1 5 , 2 1 9
S h a re pre m i u m 1 5 8 , 7 7 5 8 , 5 8 5
Revaluation re s e rv e 1 5 6 , 0 7 3 6 , 0 7 3
P rofit and loss account 1 5 3 0 4 3 4 7

3 0 , 6 3 8 3 0 , 2 2 4

Equity shareholders’ funds 3 0 , 4 0 9 2 9 , 9 9 5
Non-equity shareholders’ funds 2 2 9 2 2 9

3 0 , 6 3 8 3 0 , 2 2 4

Company Balance Sheet
30 April 2000

On behalf of the board

S O’Connor
LJ Martin
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 . Segmental analysis
2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Tu rn o v e r :
Builders merchanting 1 8 9 , 5 8 7 1 7 0 , 7 7 5
H i re 1 1 , 9 4 7 9 , 3 1 1
Steel stockholding 2 3 , 6 7 6 2 5 , 4 9 8
R e t a i l / D I Y 3 1 , 2 7 4 2 4 , 1 8 3
Panelling Centre 1 , 1 1 4 -

Total Ire l a n d 2 5 7 , 5 9 8 2 2 9 , 7 6 7
UK - builders merc h a n t i n g 6 1 , 3 5 9 3 2 , 7 7 6
To t a l 3 1 8 , 9 5 7 2 6 2 , 5 4 3

Operating profit before goodwill amort i s a t i o n :
I re l a n d 2 1 , 3 1 4 1 7 , 4 8 0
United Kingdom 2 , 3 4 9 1 , 8 3 5

2 3 , 6 6 3 1 9 , 3 1 5

The group operates in the Republic of Ireland and the United Kingdom. Additional segmental information analysed by class
of business or geographic location, under Statement of Standard Accounting Practice No.25 Segmental Reporting, is not
disclosed because in the opinion of the Directors the disclosure of such information would be prejudicial to the interests of
the gro u p .

2 Operating pro f i t
2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

The following have been cre d i t e d / ( c h a rged) in arriving at operating pro f i t :

Tu rn o v e r 3 1 8 , 9 5 7 2 6 2 , 5 4 3
Movement in stocks 7 , 5 6 4 ( 1 0 2 )
P u rchase of goods ( 2 3 4 , 0 2 1 ) ( 1 8 7 , 8 9 5 )
S t a ff costs (note 25) ( 3 5 , 8 5 0 ) ( 2 9 , 4 7 7 )
D e p re c i a t i o n ( 5 , 8 5 7 ) ( 4 , 0 6 5 )
A m o rtisation of goodwill (note 8) ( 9 0 4 ) ( 5 4 5 )
Auditors’ re m u n e r a t i o n ( 1 7 5 ) ( 1 5 3 )
Other operating charg e s ( 2 6 , 9 5 5 ) ( 2 1 , 5 3 6 )

3 I n t e rest payable
2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

I n t e rest on borrowings wholly repayable within 5 years:
- Loans and overdrafts and trade bills 1 , 3 1 2 5 8 5
- Finance leases 1 1 5 9 4

1 , 4 2 7 6 7 9
I n t e rest on borrowings wholly or partly repayable after 5 years:
- Senior guaranteed notes 1 , 5 1 0 1 , 5 0 6
Notional interest on acquisition of Cooper Clarke Group Limited 2 4 5 3 0 1

3 , 1 8 2 2 , 4 8 6



Notes to the Financial Statements c o n t i n u e d

4 Ta x a t i o n
2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Taxation based on the profit for the year:
Corporation tax:
- Republic of Ire l a n d 4 , 1 2 1 4 , 0 9 2
- O t h e r 2 3 0 3 9 0
D e f e rred taxation (note 13) 2 2 0 -

4 , 5 7 1 4 , 4 8 2

5 D i v i d e n d s
2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

O rd i n a ry : Interim @ 4.75c per share (1999: 3.81c) – paid 2 , 2 6 3 1 , 7 8 7
Final @ 5.25c per share (1999: 3.90c) – pro p o s e d 2 , 5 0 3 1 , 8 4 1

Total @ 10.00c per share (1999: 7.71c) 4 , 7 6 6 3 , 6 2 8
P re f e rence @ 6.78c per share (1999: 6.78c) - paid 1 1 1 1

4 , 7 7 7 3 , 6 3 9

Dividends included above, taken by shareholders in the form of scrip dividends (note 15), amounted to:
- Final 1999 3 1 7 1 7 6
- Interim 2000 4 9 4 5 3 0

8 1 1 7 0 6

The dividends of 11,000 on the pre f e rence shares are non-equity dividends. All other dividends are equity dividends.

6 E a rnings per share
2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

P rofit for the financial year 1 5 , 0 0 6 1 1 , 8 0 2
P re f e rence dividends ( 1 1 ) ( 1 1 )

1 4 , 9 9 5 1 1 , 7 9 1

Average number of ord i n a ry shares (000’s ) 4 7 , 4 4 4 4 6 , 8 4 1

Basic earnings per ord i n a ry share in cents 3 1 . 6 1 c 2 5 . 1 7 c

Diluted earnings per share, which takes account solely of the potential exercise of share options granted, is based on a
weighted average number of shares and options of 47,734,000 (1999: 47,099,000).

P re-goodwill earnings per share excludes the effect of goodwill amortisation of 904,000 (1999: 545,000) and is based 
on an earnings figure of 15,899,000 (1999: 1 2 , 3 3 6 , 0 0 0 ) .
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Notes to the Financial Statements c o n t i n u e d

7 Tangible fixed assets
Land and Plant and M o t o r To t a l
b u i l d i n g s e q u i p m e n t v e h i c l e s

’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0
Cost or valuation
At beginning of year 6 5 , 3 0 3 3 1 , 1 3 6 6 , 8 5 4 1 0 3 , 2 9 3
Assets in new undert a k i n g s 2 , 9 2 0 1 , 0 3 1 2 8 7 4 , 2 3 8
A d d i t i o n s 3 , 6 6 7 7 , 5 0 8 3 , 1 9 2 1 4 , 3 6 7
D i s p o s a l s ( 1 2 8 ) ( 2 , 7 1 8 ) ( 2 , 1 0 2 ) ( 4 , 9 4 8 )
Translation adjustment 9 4 1 5 8 7 5 7 7 2 , 1 0 5
At end of year 7 2 , 7 0 3 3 7 , 5 4 4 8 , 8 0 8 1 1 9 , 0 5 5

Accumulated depre c i a t i o n
At beginning of year - 1 4 , 3 5 5 3 , 1 9 2 1 7 , 5 4 7
Assets in new undert a k i n g s - 6 1 2 1 0 5 7 1 7
C h a rge for year 7 0 4 4 , 0 0 8 1 , 1 4 5 5 , 8 5 7
D i s p o s a l s ( 2 0 ) ( 1 , 4 4 3 ) ( 1 , 6 6 9 ) ( 3 , 1 3 2 )
Translation adjustment 7 7 4 4 4 3 4 8 8 6 9
At end of year 7 6 1 1 7 , 9 7 6 3 , 1 2 1 2 1 , 8 5 8

Net book amounts
At end of year 7 1 , 9 4 2 1 9 , 5 6 8 5 , 6 8 7 9 7 , 1 9 7
At beginning of year 6 5 , 3 0 3 1 6 , 7 8 1 3 , 6 6 2 8 5 , 7 4 6

A full valuation of the gro u p ’s land and buildings was perf o rmed by external valuers, Lisney, at 30 April 1999 principally 
on an existing use value basis.

Assets acquired in new undertakings are included at fair value at the date of acquisition (note 20).

D e p reciation has been applied at the following rates:
B u i l d i n g s Average 1.5% p.a. straight line
Plant and equipment 10% - 331/3% p.a. straight line
Motor vehicles 20% p.a. reducing balance

Included in tangible fixed assets are the following amounts in respect of assets acquired under finance leases:

2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

C o s t 5 , 1 2 9 3 , 9 9 7
Accumulated depre c i a t i o n ( 1 , 0 3 5 ) ( 1 , 0 4 0 )
Net book amount 4 , 0 9 4 2 , 9 5 7

D e p reciation charge for year 5 6 1 2 3 4

Land and buildings would have been stated as follows under the unmodified historical cost convention:

2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

C o s t 4 0 , 5 6 1 3 3 , 1 6 1
Accumulated depre c i a t i o n ( 3 , 2 9 8 ) ( 2 , 7 9 3 )
Net book amount 3 7 , 2 6 3 3 0 , 3 6 8



Notes to the Financial Statements c o n t i n u e d

8 Intangible assets - goodwill 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

C o s t
At beginning of year 1 9 , 1 1 1 -
Arising during year (note 20) 4 , 8 6 4 1 7 , 9 6 5
Reduction during year ( 2 , 6 1 8 ) -
Translation adjustment 2 , 2 7 9 1 , 1 4 6
At end of year 2 3 , 6 3 6 1 9 , 1 1 1

Accumulated amortisation 
At beginning of year 5 2 0 -
C h a rge for year 9 0 4 5 4 5
Translation adjustment 2 0 4 ( 2 5 )
At end of year 1 , 6 2 8 5 2 0

Net book amount 2 2 , 0 0 8 1 8 , 5 9 1

The reduction in goodwill during the year reflects the reduction in contingent consideration payable to the vendors of
Cooper Clarke Group Limited due to the non-achievement of profit targets, 3,115,000, net of a reduction in the fair 
value of assets acquired of 4 9 7 , 0 0 0 .

Goodwill is amortised on a straight line basis over its economic useful life estimated as between 10 and 20 years.

In accordance with the gro u p ’s accounting policy, goodwill arising on the acquisition of undertakings prior to 1 May 1998
remains eliminated against or added to re s e rves. Since 1979, such positive goodwill amounted to 6,598,000 and negative
goodwill to 2,509,000. This goodwill would be charged or credited in the profit and loss account should the gro u p
dispose of the businesses to which it re l a t e s .

9 S t o c k s

Stocks consist principally of bought-in goods held for re s a l e .

The replacement cost of stocks does not differ significantly from the balance sheet amounts.

1 0 D e b t o r s
G ro u p C o m p a n y

2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Trade debtors 6 4 , 4 6 7 5 7 , 3 8 3 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undert a k i n g s - - 4 8 , 4 4 6 4 0 , 0 7 3
P repayments and accrued income 6 , 0 6 4 5 , 1 6 4 - -

7 0 , 5 3 1 6 2 , 5 4 7 4 8 , 4 4 6 4 0 , 0 7 3

All amounts included above fall due within one year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements c o n t i n u e d

1 1 C reditors - amounts falling due within one year
G ro u p C o m p a n y

2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Bank loans and overdrafts (note 12) 6 , 5 3 6 2 , 6 0 0 2 , 0 0 2 7 5 3
Loan notes - 6 8 - 6 8
Trade cre d i t o r s 6 5 , 6 8 8 5 3 , 5 5 6 - -
Trade bills payable 2 0 3 2 5 6 - -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undert a k i n g s - - 1 2 , 0 5 0 6 , 7 7 8
Corporation tax 5 , 6 9 6 5 , 9 0 4 - -
Income tax deducted under PAY E 5 3 0 5 0 9 - -
Value-added tax 5 , 1 2 0 4 , 2 0 7 - -
P a y - related social insurance 3 1 7 3 0 9 - -
Finance leases 1 , 4 2 5 7 7 2 - -
A c c ru a l s 7 , 0 0 4 6 , 8 7 0 3 3 4
D e f e rred acquisition consideration 9 , 8 8 7 6 , 3 2 3 1 , 5 4 0 -
Dividends proposed (note 5) 2 , 5 0 3 1 , 8 4 1 2 , 5 0 3 1 , 8 4 1

1 0 4 , 9 0 9 8 3 , 2 1 5 1 8 , 1 2 8 9 , 4 4 4

C reditors for taxation and social welfare included above 1 1 , 6 6 3 1 0 , 9 2 9 - -

D e f e rred acquisition consideration amounting to 8,347,000 is guaranteed by certain subsidiary undert a k i n g s .

1 2 C reditors - amounts falling due after more than one year
G ro u p C o m p a n y

2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Bank loans 2 1 , 8 8 9 1 4 , 4 9 1 2 1 , 1 9 9 1 3 , 1 2 9
Senior guaranteed notes 2 1 , 0 9 2 2 1 , 0 9 2 2 1 , 0 9 2 2 1 , 0 9 2
Finance leases 1 , 8 1 1 1 , 5 1 3 - -
D e f e rred acquisition consideration - 1 0 , 1 3 1 - -

4 4 , 7 9 2 4 7 , 2 2 7 4 2 , 2 9 1 3 4 , 2 2 1

The maturity profile and guarantees in respect of debt are shown in note 18.

1 3 D e f e rred taxation
G ro u p C o m p a n y

2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

On accelerated capital allowances and other timing diff e re n c e s :
At beginning of year 2 , 4 0 2 2 , 2 2 2 1 8 6 1 8 6
D e f e rred tax in new undert a k i n g - 1 6 8 - -
C h a rge to profit and loss account (note 4) 2 2 0 - 3 1 -
Translation adjustment ( 2 2 ) 1 2 - -
At end of year 2 , 6 0 0 2 , 4 0 2 2 1 7 1 8 6

D e f e rred taxation not provided for at 30 April 2000 amounted to Nil (1999: N i l ) .
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1 4 S h a re capital
2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

A u t h o r i s e d :
Equity: 60,000,000 ord i n a ry shares of 32c (1999: 25p) each 1 9 , 2 0 0 1 9 , 0 4 6
Non-equity: 180,000 6% cumulative pre f e rence shares of 1.27 (1999: IR£1) each 2 2 9 2 2 9

1 9 , 4 2 9 1 9 , 2 7 5

Allotted and fully paid:
Equity: 47,677,484 ord i n a ry shares of 32c (1999: 25p) each 1 5 , 2 5 7 1 4 , 9 9 0
Non-equity: 180,000 6% cumulative pre f e rence shares of 1.27 (1999: IR£1) each 2 2 9 2 2 9

1 5 , 4 8 6 1 5 , 2 1 9

The movement in allotted and fully paid ord i n a ry share capital comprises: N o m i n a l
S h a re s v a l u e
0 0 0 ’s ’ 0 0 0

At beginning of year 4 7 , 2 2 3 1 4 , 9 9 0
Transfer from profit and loss account - 1 2 1
Scrip dividends (note 15) 2 2 3 7 1
Issue of shares under the employee profit sharing scheme 5 8 1 9
E x e rcise of share options 1 7 3 5 6
At end of year 4 7 , 6 7 7 1 5 , 2 5 7

Under the terms of the employee profit sharing scheme introduced on 26 October 1989, 58,268 ord i n a ry shares were
allotted at 3.10 each for cash of 1 8 0 , 6 3 2 .

The share option scheme introduced on 11 October 1979 for senior members of management within the group was closed
during the year. Options in respect of 173,029 ord i n a ry shares were exercised for cash of 162,868. At 30 April 2000
options had been granted in respect of 761,118 ord i n a ry shares at an average price of 2.09 per ord i n a ry share .

Under the terms of the share option scheme introduced on 10 April 2000 established pursuant to a resolution of the
company at the Annual General Meeting on 9 September 1999, senior members of management within the group may 
be granted options to subscribe for ord i n a ry shares up to a maximum of 10% of the company’s shares having allowed for
options under all the employee share schemes. At 30 April 2000 options had been granted in respect of 41,500 shares at
an average price of 3.20 per ord i n a ry share .

The cumulative pre f e rence shares are entitled to a fixed cumulative dividend at the rate of 6% per annum subject to
withholding tax payable half yearly in arrears on 1 October and 1 April. On a winding up the holders have priority to re c e i v e
repayment of capital plus all arrears of dividend. The holders have no voting rights unless the dividend is in arrears by six
months or more .

In accordance with resolutions approved at the Annual General Meeting on 9 September 1999, the company
redenominated its pre f e rence and ord i n a ry share capital from Irish pounds to euros and renominated the par values of its
p re f e rence and ord i n a ry shares to 1.27 and 32c re s p e c t i v e l y. This resulted in an increase in the company’s share capital of

121,000 which has been effected by a capitalisation of distributable profits (note 15).



4 3

Notes to the Financial Statements c o n t i n u e d

1 5 R e s e rve movements S h a re R e v a l u a t i o n P ro f i t To t a l
p re m i u m re s e rv e and loss
a c c o u n t a c c o u n t

’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0
G ro u p
At beginning of year 8 , 5 8 5 2 9 , 9 6 3 3 2 , 9 8 0 7 1 , 5 2 8
Scrip dividends (notes 5 & 14) ( 7 1 ) - 8 1 1 7 4 0
Issue of shares under the employee profit 

sharing scheme (note 14) 1 6 2 - - 1 6 2
Issue of shares under the executive share 

option scheme (note 14) 1 0 7 - - 1 0 7
Expenses in connection with share issues ( 8 ) - - ( 8 )
Retained for the year - - 1 0 , 2 2 9 1 0 , 2 2 9
C u rrency translation adjustment on fore i g n

c u rrency net investments - - ( 7 ) ( 7 )
Renominalisation of share capital - - ( 1 2 1 ) ( 1 2 1 )
At end of year 8 , 7 7 5 2 9 , 9 6 3 4 3 , 8 9 2 8 2 , 6 3 0

C o m p a n y
At beginning of year 8 , 5 8 5 6 , 0 7 3 3 4 7 1 5 , 0 0 5
Scrip dividends (notes 5 & 14) ( 7 1 ) - 8 1 1 7 4 0
Issue of shares under the employee profit 

sharing scheme (note 14) 1 6 2 - - 1 6 2
Issue of shares under the executive share option

scheme (note 14) 1 0 7 - - 1 0 7
Expenses in connection with share issues ( 8 ) - - ( 8 )
Retained for the year - - ( 7 3 3 ) ( 7 3 3 )
Renominalisation of share capital - - ( 1 2 1 ) ( 1 2 1 )
At end of year 8 , 7 7 5 6 , 0 7 3 3 0 4 1 5 , 1 5 2

The profit for the financial year includes a profit of 4,044,000 (1999: 2,575,000) which has been dealt with in the pro f i t
and loss account of the company which, as permitted by section 3(2) of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 1986, is not
p resented in these financial statements.

1 6 Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities
2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Operating pro f i t 2 2 , 7 5 9 1 8 , 7 7 0
D e p re c i a t i o n 5 , 8 5 7 4 , 0 6 5
P rofit on disposal of tangible fixed assets ( 2 0 1 ) ( 1 , 8 3 2 )
A m o rtisation of goodwill 9 0 4 5 4 5
Cash inflow from trading 2 9 , 3 1 9 2 1 , 5 4 8

S t o c k s ( 7 , 5 6 4 ) 1 0 2
D e b t o r s ( 5 , 9 5 5 ) ( 6 , 5 3 7 )
C re d i t o r s 6 , 2 7 4 1 , 8 0 8
Cash outflow from working capital ( 7 , 2 4 5 ) ( 4 , 6 2 7 )

Net cash inflow from operating activities 2 2 , 0 7 4 1 6 , 9 2 1
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1 7 Cash flows for headings netted in cash flow statement
2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

R e t u rns on investments and servicing of finance
I n t e rest paid ( 2 , 8 2 2 ) ( 2 , 0 9 1 )
Finance lease interest payments ( 1 1 5 ) ( 9 4 )
P re f e rence dividends ( 1 1 ) ( 1 1 )

( 2 , 9 4 8 ) ( 2 , 1 9 6 )

Capital expenditure 
P u rchase of tangible fixed assets ( 1 4 , 3 6 7 ) ( 1 2 , 4 9 7 )

2 , 1 2 8 5 1 0
( 1 2 , 2 3 9 ) ( 1 1 , 9 8 7 )

Disposal of tangible fixed assets 2 , 0 1 7 4 , 2 2 3
( 1 0 , 2 2 2 ) ( 7 , 7 6 4 )

I n c re a s e / ( d e c rease) in debt (note 18)
Debt due after one year 8 , 2 1 4 1 2 , 8 7 1
Debt due within one year 6 2 5 ( 1 8 9 )
Finance lease capital re p a y m e n t s ( 1 , 1 7 7 ) ( 6 7 1 )

7 , 6 6 2 1 2 , 0 1 1

1 8 Analysis of net debt At beginning Cash flow O t h e r At end 
of year n o n - c a s h of year

c h a n g e s
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Cash at bank and in hand 1 1 , 0 0 0 ( 1 , 4 3 0 ) - 9 , 5 7 0
Bank overd r a f t s ( 1 , 7 2 9 ) ( 2 , 4 2 7 ) - ( 4 , 1 5 6 )

9 , 2 7 1 ( 3 , 8 5 7 ) - 5 , 4 1 4

Debt due after one year (see below) ( 3 5 , 5 8 3 ) ( 8 , 2 1 4 ) 8 1 6 ( 4 2 , 9 8 1 )
Debt due within one year (see below) ( 9 3 9 ) ( 6 2 5 ) ( 8 1 6 ) ( 2 , 3 8 0 )
Finance leases (notes 11 &12) ( 2 , 2 8 5 ) 1 , 1 7 7 ( 2 , 1 2 8 ) ( 3 , 2 3 6 )

( 3 8 , 8 0 7 ) ( 7 , 6 6 2 ) ( 2 , 1 2 8 ) ( 4 8 , 5 9 7 )

To t a l ( 2 9 , 5 3 6 ) ( 1 1 , 5 1 9 ) ( 2 , 1 2 8 ) ( 4 3 , 1 8 3 )

Debt due after one year (note 12):
Bank loans ( 1 4 , 4 9 1 ) ( 8 , 2 1 4 ) 8 1 6 ( 2 1 , 8 8 9 )
Senior guaranteed notes ( 2 1 , 0 9 2 ) - - ( 2 1 , 0 9 2 )

( 3 5 , 5 8 3 ) ( 8 , 2 1 4 ) 8 1 6 ( 4 2 , 9 8 1 )

Debt due within one year:
Bank loans ( 8 7 1 ) ( 6 9 3 ) ( 8 1 6 ) ( 2 , 3 8 0 )
Loan notes ( 6 8 ) 6 8 - -

( 9 3 9 ) ( 6 2 5 ) ( 8 1 6 ) ( 2 , 3 8 0 )

The amount of 2,218,000 under other non-cash changes above re p resents new finance leases.
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1 8 Analysis of net debt c o n t i n u e d

Maturity profile of debt Wi t h i n 1 - 2 2 - 5 O v e r To t a l
1 year y e a r s y e a r s 5 years

Bank overd r a f t s 4 , 1 5 6 - - - 4 , 1 5 6
Bank loans 2 , 3 8 0 7 , 5 9 5 1 4 , 2 9 4 - 2 4 , 2 6 9
Senior guaranteed notes - - 8 , 4 3 7 1 2 , 6 5 5 2 1 , 0 9 2
Finance leases 1 , 4 2 5 1 , 8 1 1 - - 3 , 2 3 6

7 , 9 6 1 9 , 4 0 6 2 2 , 7 3 1 1 2 , 6 5 5 5 2 , 7 5 3

Bank loans and overdrafts of subsidiary undertakings amounting to 5,224,000 (1999: 1,847,000) are guaranteed 
by the Company.
The senior guaranteed notes are guaranteed by certain subsidiary undert a k i n g s .

1 9 Tre a s u ry inform a t i o n

( a ) I n t e rest rate and currency pro f i l e
The interest rate and currency profile of the gro u p ’s financial assets and financial liabilities was as follows:

2 0 0 0
E u ro S t e r l i n g U S $ To t a l
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Weighted average fixed debt interest rates 7 . 0 %
Weighted average fixed debt periods - years 5
Fixed rate financial liabilities ( 2 2 , 4 4 8 ) - - ( 2 2 , 4 4 8 )
Floating rate financial liabilities ( 2 , 7 0 0 ) ( 2 7 , 6 0 5 ) - ( 3 0 , 3 0 5 )
Financial liabilities on which no interest is paid ( 1 , 2 0 6 ) ( 8 , 6 8 1 ) - ( 9 , 8 8 7 )

( 2 6 , 3 5 4 ) ( 3 6 , 2 8 6 ) - ( 6 2 , 6 4 0 )
Financial assets 8 , 2 8 1 1 , 2 8 9 - 9 , 5 7 0
Net financial liabilities ( 1 8 , 0 7 3 ) ( 3 4 , 9 9 7 ) - ( 5 3 , 0 7 0 )

1 9 9 9
E u ro S t e r l i n g U S $ To t a l
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Weighted average fixed debt interest rates 7 . 0 %
Weighted average fixed debt periods - years 6
Fixed rate financial liabilities ( 2 3 , 4 4 5 ) - - ( 2 3 , 4 4 5 )
Floating rate financial liabilities ( 5 4 ) ( 1 6 , 2 8 5 ) ( 7 5 2 ) ( 1 7 , 0 9 1 )
Financial liabilities on which no interest is paid - ( 1 6 , 4 5 4 ) - ( 1 6 , 4 5 4 )

( 2 3 , 4 9 9 ) ( 3 2 , 7 3 9 ) ( 7 5 2 ) ( 5 6 , 9 9 0 )
Financial assets 1 0 , 8 6 6 1 3 4 - 1 1 , 0 0 0
Net financial liabilities ( 1 2 , 6 3 3 ) ( 3 2 , 6 0 5 ) ( 7 5 2 ) ( 4 5 , 9 9 0 )

The amounts shown above take into account the effect of cross currency interest rate swaps and forw a rd foreign exchange
contracts entered into to manage these currency exposure s .
The fixed rate financial liabilities comprise senior guaranteed loan notes and finance leases (notes 11 and 12).
The floating rate financial liabilities comprise bank loans and overdrafts that bear interest at rates based on DIBOR
and LIBOR (notes 11 and 12).

Financial liabilities on which no interest is paid (but notional interest is attributed) comprises deferred acquisition
consideration (notes 11 and 12). The weighted average period of these liabilities is 1 year.

Financial assets comprises cash at bank which is substantially non-interest earn i n g .
Financial liabilities and financial assets exclude short term creditors and debtors.
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1 9 Tre a s u ry information - continued

( b ) C u rrency exposure s

At 30 April 2000, after taking into account the effects of forw a rd foreign exchange contracts, the group had no
material currency exposure s .

( c ) Maturity of financial liabilities 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Due within one year 1 7 , 8 4 8 9 , 7 6 3
Between one and two years 9 , 4 0 6 1 2 , 4 1 4
Between two and five years 2 2 , 7 3 1 1 2 , 6 8 7
After five years 1 2 , 6 5 5 2 2 , 1 2 6

6 2 , 6 4 0 5 6 , 9 9 0

( d ) B o rrowing facilities

The group has various undrawn committed borrowing facilities. The facilities available at 30 April 2000 in respect of
which all conditions precedent had been met were as follows:

2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Expiring in one year or less - -
Expiring in more than one year but not more than two years - -
Expiring in more than two years 2 5 , 0 2 2 2 5 , 8 5 8

2 5 , 0 2 2 2 5 , 8 5 8

( e ) Fair values of financial liabilities and financial assets

The gro u p ’s senior loan notes (note 12), which are denominated in US$, are hedged into Euros by cross curre n c y
i n t e rest rate swap agreements. These loan notes are stated in the balance sheet at 30 April 2000 at 2 1 , 0 9 2 , 0 0 0
(1999: 21,092,000), the loan notes having been translated to Euros at the exchange rates inherent in the swap
a g reements. The fair value of the swaps at 30 April 2000 amounted to a gain 3,028,816. The fair value of the
g ro u p ’s other financial liabilities and financial assets are not materially diff e rent from their book values.

( f ) Gains and losses on hedges

At 30 April 2000 and 30 April 1999 there were no material gains or losses on forw a rd foreign exchange contract
hedges carried forw a rd for future recognition in the profit and loss account.

( g ) Tre a s u ry policy

The gro u p ’s tre a s u ry policy and management of derivatives and other financial instruments, which forms part of these
financial statements, is set out in the Chief Executive’s Operating and Financial Review on page 17.
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2 0 P u rchase of new undert a k i n g s

The group purchased all of the share capital of The Panelling Centre Limited on 1 April 2000. The purchase has been
accounted for using acquisition accounting and its results are included in these financial statements from the date 
of acquisition.

The fair values, consideration and goodwill on acquisition were as follows:

Book value R e v a l u a t i o n Fair value
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Tangible fixed assets 1 , 5 6 4 1 , 9 5 7 3 , 5 2 1
S t o c k s 1 , 8 4 0 - 1 , 8 4 0
D e b t o r s 2 , 0 2 9 - 2 , 0 2 9
C re d i t o r s ( 3 , 5 5 7 ) - ( 3 , 5 5 7 )
Corporation tax ( 1 7 1 ) - ( 1 7 1 )

1 , 7 0 5 1 , 9 5 7 3 , 6 6 2
Goodwill (note 8) - - 4 , 8 6 4

1 , 7 0 5 1 , 9 5 7 8 , 5 2 6

Satisfied by:

Cash payments 7 , 5 2 2
Cash acquire d ( 5 3 6 )

6 , 9 8 6
D e f e rred acquisition consideration 1 , 5 4 0

8 , 5 2 6

D e f e rred acquisition consideration includes 1,206,000 of contingent consideration.
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2 1 Financial assets 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Unlisted shares in subsidiary undertakings at cost or valuation:

At beginning of year 3 3 , 7 6 6 3 3 , 7 4 8
A d d i t i o n s 9 , 0 6 2 1 8
At end of year 4 2 , 8 2 8 3 3 , 7 6 6

The unlisted shares in subsidiary undertakings were valued by the Directors at 30 April 1990 by re f e rence to their then share
capital and non-distributable re s e rves and, in the case of those subsidiary undertakings acquired, their acquisition cost.

Unlisted shares in subsidiary undertakings would have been stated at 34,590,000 (1998: 25,528,000) under the
unmodified historical cost convention.

2 2 F u t u re capital expenditure not provided for 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

(None of which apply to the company)

Contracted for 1 , 2 2 1 2 , 4 7 5
Authorised by the directors but not contracted for 1 1 , 6 5 8 9 3 1

1 2 , 8 7 9 3 , 4 0 6

2 3 Operating lease obligations

Commitments under operating leases, payable in the coming year, related to leases expiring in the following periods:

Land and M o t o r To t a l
b u i l d i n g s v e h i c l e s

’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

Within one year 1 1 7 2 1 1 3 2 8
Within two to five years - 8 1 1 8 1 1
Over five years 2 , 6 3 6 6 6 0 3 , 2 9 6

2 , 7 5 3 1 , 6 8 2 4 , 4 3 5

2 4 Contingent liabilities

The company has guaranteed the liabilities of its Irish re g i s t e red subsidiary undertakings for the purpose of section 17 of the
Companies (Amendment) Act, 1986.
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2 5 Employee inform a t i o n 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

C o s t

Wages and salaries 3 1 , 7 7 2 2 5 , 8 4 3
Social welfare costs 3 , 1 2 8 2 , 6 9 2
Pension costs 9 5 0 9 4 2

3 5 , 8 5 0 2 9 , 4 7 7

The amount for wages and salaries includes a provision of 292,000 (1999: 168,000) payable to the trustees of the
employee profit sharing scheme to acquire ord i n a ry shares in the company (note 14).

E m p l o y m e n t 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

The average number of persons employed during the year was:
- Full time 1 , 2 7 2 1 , 1 3 2
- Part time 1 4 9 1 3 4

1 , 4 2 1 1 , 2 6 6

P e n s i o n s

The group operates a number of funded pension schemes of the defined benefit type and one pension scheme of the
defined contribution type. The assets of these schemes are held in separate trustee administered funds.

The total pension cost for the group for the year ended 30 April 2000 was 950,000 (1999: 942,000). The pension cost
is assessed in accordance with the advice of a qualified actuary.

The defined benefit schemes are subject to regular actuarial re v i e w. The principal assumption used in the actuarial
valuations is that the diff e rence between the investment re t u rn and wage/salary increases would average 2.0% p.a.. 
The attained age method of funding is used.

Actuarial valuations of the defined benefit schemes were perf o rmed at various dates between 1997 and 1999. These
valuations indicated that, on an aggregate basis, the actuarial values of the assets were sufficient to cover more than 
100% of the value of benefits accrued to existing members. The market value of the assets at the dates of these 
valuations was 2 1 , 0 2 4 , 0 0 0 .

The actuarial re p o rts are available for inspection by members of the schemes but not for public inspection.

2 6 D i rectors’ interests, emoluments and pensions

Details of directors’ interests, emoluments and pensions, which form part of these financial statements, are given on 
pages 22 to 25.

2 7 Principal subsidiary undert a k i n g s

Details of the principal subsidiary companies are given on page 52.

2 8 A p p roval of financial statements

The directors approved the financial statements on 5 July 2000.



Five Year Financial Summary

2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8 1 9 9 7 1 9 9 6
’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0 ’ 0 0 0

P rofit and loss account

Tu rn o v e r 3 1 8 , 9 5 7 2 6 2 , 5 4 3 2 1 0 , 4 0 6 1 7 8 , 2 5 1 1 6 2 , 9 9 2

P rofit before interest and taxation 2 2 , 7 5 9 1 8 , 7 7 0 1 5 , 3 4 1 1 1 , 6 9 2 9 , 7 5 6
Financing costs ( 3 , 1 8 2 ) ( 2 , 4 8 6 ) ( 1 , 3 3 3 ) ( 7 6 1 ) ( 9 9 0 )

P rofit before taxation 1 9 , 5 7 7 1 6 , 2 8 4 1 4 , 0 0 8 1 0 , 9 3 1 8 , 7 6 6
Ta x a t i o n ( 4 , 5 7 1 ) ( 4 , 4 8 2 ) ( 4 , 5 4 1 ) ( 3 , 7 0 7 ) ( 3 , 0 4 7 )

P rofit after taxation 1 5 , 0 0 6 1 1 , 8 0 2 9 , 4 6 7 7 , 2 2 4 5 , 7 1 9

Basic earnings per share 3 1 . 6 2 5 . 2 2 0 . 3 1 5 . 7 1 2 . 4

P re-goodwill earnings per share 3 3 . 5 2 6 . 3 2 0 . 3 1 5 . 7 1 2 . 4

Dividends per share 1 0 . 0 7 . 7 6 . 2 5 . 0 3 . 9

Dividend cover 3 . 2 3 . 3 3 . 3 3 . 1 3 . 2

Operating cash flow 2 2 , 0 7 4 1 6 , 9 2 1 1 3 , 9 8 5 1 1 , 1 2 9 1 1 , 8 1 6

Balance sheet
Tangible fixed assets 9 7 , 1 9 7 8 5 , 7 4 6 4 2 , 1 6 8 3 1 , 9 4 8 2 7 , 7 8 5
Intangible assets 2 2 , 0 0 8 1 8 , 5 9 1 - - -
Working capital (non-financial) 3 4 , 5 8 1 3 0 , 8 0 2 2 1 , 1 6 8 1 8 , 6 1 2 1 5 , 2 9 0

1 5 3 , 7 8 6 1 3 5 , 1 3 9 6 3 , 3 3 6 5 0 , 5 6 0 4 3 , 0 7 5

Financed as follows:
S h a reholders’ funds 9 8 , 1 1 6 8 6 , 7 4 7 5 1 , 1 1 2 4 5 , 6 7 4 4 0 , 4 5 9
Net debt 4 3 , 1 8 3 2 9 , 5 3 6 1 0 , 0 0 2 3 , 7 9 4 2 , 1 5 9
D e f e rred acquisition consideration 9 , 8 8 7 1 6 , 4 5 4 - - -
D e f e rred tax 2 , 6 0 0 2 , 4 0 2 2 , 2 2 2 1 , 0 9 2 4 5 7

1 5 3 , 7 8 6 1 3 5 , 1 3 9 6 3 , 3 3 6 5 0 , 5 6 0 4 3 , 0 7 5

P e rf o rmance measure s
R e t u rn on equity 1 5 . 3 % 1 3 . 6 % 1 8 . 5 % 1 5 . 8 % 1 4 . 1 %

R e t u rn on capital employed 1 1 . 3 % 1 0 . 1 % 1 6 . 4 % 1 5 . 3 % 1 4 . 8 %

Year Ended 30 April
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S h a reholders Inform a t i o n

S h a reholder Analysis at 30 April 2000
Number of % of Number of % of 

Accounts Accounts Shares Shares

1 - 5,000 2,660 82.5% 4,242,296 8.9%
5,001 - 25,000 454 14.1% 4,357,751 9.1%
25,001 - 100,000 63 1.9% 3,030,509 6.4%
100,001 - 250,000 16 0.5% 2,252,495 4.7%
250,001 - 500,000 15 0.5% 5,772,174 12.1%
Over 500,000 17 0.5% 28,022,259 58.8%

3,225 100.0% 47,677,484 100.0%

S h a re Price Data ( c )
H i g h L o w 30 April

Year ended 30 April 2000 4 0 0 2 7 0 3 3 0
Year ended 30 April 1999 3 0 5 1 7 7 2 7 2

The market capitalisation of Heiton Holdings plc at 30 April
2000 was 157.3 million (1999: 128.4 million).

Web Site
F u rther information on Heiton Holdings plc is available at
h t t p : / / w w w. h e i t o n s . i e .

Investor Relations
For investor enquiries please contact: Peter Byers, 
Finance Dire c t o r, Heiton Holdings plc, Ashfield, Naas Road,
Clondalkin, Dublin 22. 
Tel: +353 1 403 4000 Fax: + 353 1 459 3696.

R e g i s t r a r
Administrative enquiries about the holding of Heiton
Holdings plc’s shares should be directed in the first 
instance to the Company’s Registrars whose address 
is IRG Registrars, PO Box 7117, Dublin2.
Tel: +353 1 810 2400 Fax: +353 1 810 2422

Amalgamation of Accounts
S h a reholders who receive duplicate sets of company
mailings owing to multiple accounts in their name should
write to the Company’s Registrar at the above address to
have their accounts amalgamated.

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held at Jurys Hotel,
Ballsbridge, Dublin 4 on Thursday 7 September 2000 at 12
noon. The Notice of Meeting together with an explanatory
letter from the Chairman and a proxy card accompany 
this re p o rt .

Final Dividend
O rd i n a ry 6% Cumulative 

S h a re s P re f e rence Share s

D i v i d e n d 5.25c gross per 3.81c gross per
s h a re subject s h a re in respect of 

to declaration at the half year 
the Annual 1 April 2000 to 30

General Meeting September 2000
D i v i d e n d
payment date 20 September 2000 1 October 2000

Scrip Dividend
S h a reholders are being off e red the opportunity to re c e i v e
all or part of the final dividend for the year ended 30 April
2000 in the form of fully paid new Heiton Holdings plc
o rd i n a ry shares. Details of the scrip dividend off e r, and a
F o rm of Election/Mandate Form or Notice of Entitlement 
(as appropriate) accompany this re p o rt. Share h o l d e r s
wishing to avail of the scrip dividend offer who do not 
have a Mandate in place must complete, sign and re t u rn
the form of Election to the Company’s Registrar so as to
a rrive no later than 3.00pm on 1 September 2000.

C R E S T
Heiton Holdings plc joined the CREST share settlement
system on 20 January 1997. Shareholders may continue 
to hold paper share certificates or hold their shares in
e l e c t ronic form .
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Financial Calendar
P re l i m i n a ry results announced 5 July 2000
Ex-dividend date for final dividend 17 July 2000
R e c o rd date for final dividend 21 July 2000
Annual Report posted 1 August 2000
Annual General Meeting 7 September 2000
Payment date for final dividend 20 September 2000
Interim results announced Early January 2001

Principal Subsidiary Companies - all wholly owned

Heiton McFerran Limited - Builders Merchants and Steel Stockholders

Heiton McFerran (Donegal) Limited - Builders Merc h a n t s

M o rgan McMahon & Co. Limited - Timber Importers and Builders Merc h a n t s

Heiton McCowen Limited - Builders Merchants 

Atlantic Home and Garden Centre Limited - Investment Holding Company

Atlantic Home Care Limited - Homecare / D . I . Y.

F & T Buckley Limited - Builders Merc h a n t s

F & T Buckley (Holdings) Limited - Pro p e rty & Investment Holding Company

Timber Frame Limited - Manufacturing Company

Lindis Limited - Manufacturing Company

Sam Hire Limited - Plant and Tool Hire

Panelling Centre Limited - Panelling Pro d u c t s

The above Companies are all incorporated and operate in the Republic of
I reland and have their Registered Offices at Ashfield, Naas Road, Clondalkin,
Dublin 22, except Sam Hire Limited whose Registered Office is at Red Cow,
Naas Road, Clondalkin, Dublin 22.

Cooper Clarke Group Limited - Builders Merc h a n t s
The above Company is incorporated and operates in the United Kingdom. Its
R e g i s t e red Office is at Stone Hill Road, Farn w o rth, Bolton, BL4 9NG, England.

R e g i s t e red Off i c e
Ashfield, Naas Road, Clondalkin, Dublin 22
R e g i s t e red in Dublin, Ireland. No. 1945.

Principal Bankers
Allied Irish Bank plc
B a n k c e n t re
B a l l s b r i d g e
Dublin 4

A u d i t o r s
P r i c e w a t e rh o u s e C o o p e r s
C h a rt e red Accountants and Registere d
A u d i t o r s
Wilton Place, Dublin 2.

S o l i c i t o r s
A. & L. Goodbody,
I . F.S.C., North Wall Quay, Dublin 1.

S t o c k b ro k e r s
Davy Stockbro k e r s ,
49 Dawson Street, Dublin 2.


